GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

e e e T N
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & 5PORTS FA

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, August 27, 2003
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
- II.  Approval of June 25, 2003 Minutes Action
:"::c' N IIl. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
IV. Committee Reports
John Logie,
Ehiourcn | a. Bulldmg Committee
o i Resolution Approving Completion of the DeVos Action
(D:hf .(;hForles Performance Hall Interior Renovation Project
avid Frey

and Approving and Authorizing Entering Into
Certain Agreements Related Thereto

Steven Heacock
Birgit Klohs

Joseph Tomoselli

b. Operations Committee

1. Revisions to M/WBE Policy Action
ii. CVB Update Information
c. Finance Committee
1. Approval of Disbursements Action
ii. Approval of SMG Financial Reports Action
iil. Approval of CAA Financial Report Action
iv. General Liability Insurance Renewal Action
V. Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a Action

First Amendment to Sublease Agreement with Kent County

in Connection with the Issuance by the City-County Building
Authority of Additional Bonds to Finance a Portion of the Cost of
Improvement, Expansion and Renovation of DeVos Place

VAN ANDEL

Grand Center
é;30 Fulton West 245 Monroe Ave. NW
6]rgnd4§og|ds Ml 49503 Grand Rapids, MI 49503
Pae. gz 08090 o 616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6590



VII.

VIIL

IX.

SMG Report
- Facilities Calendar

Other Business

Public Comment

Adjournment

Information



Item 11

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, June 25, 2003

L Call to Order

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present: John Logie, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles
David Frey
Steve Heacock
Birgit Klohs
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: None

Staff/Others: Matt Bamnes Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Larry Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County

1L Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mpr. Frey, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the May 28, 2003,
meetings of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

III. DeVos Place Construction Update

Mr. Bamnes expressed his deep sorrow over the fatal accident at the construction site. Last week, a 20x20-
foot section of concrete collapsed on Adam Petruska who was working in the Welsh Auditorium. More
than 100 fire and rescue squads worked admirably in a massive effort to save Adam. The construction
team appreciates the care and compassion that was extended to them and to Adam’s family. Mr. Barnes
extended his appreciation to Jim Gray, Robin Sewall, and Dale Sommers for addressing the media and
comforting the family. Mr. Barnes met with MIOSHA officials who now are in the process of an
investigation. MIOSHA has reviewed the construction manager’s work plan and safety plan and has
cleared the team to continue working. Mr. Barnes read a letter of condolence from Advance



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25, 2003 - 2

Equipment. Mayor Logie acknowledged the efforts of the rescue crews. On behalf of the Board, Mayor
Logie expressed the CAA’s heartfelt sympathy to Adam’s family and the construction team.

Mr. Barnes reported that the construction team is set to detonate the roof of the Welsh Auditorium on July
13. The event is not considered a true implosion since the exterior walls would remain standing. Mr.
Sewall reported that carpet and finished products for the Grand Hall have arrived and will be installed
shortly. The painting subcontractor continues to paint miscellaneous offices, corridors, stairwells,
communication closets, and bulkheads on all levels. The intricate layout of the terrazzo system is
complete and 80% of the terrazzo mix has been placed. In the Exhibit Hall, the concrete subcontractor
has completed the floor slab and truck dock area slab on grade. The mechanical subcontractor has set
cooling towers, chillers, and is setting air handling units. The enclosure of the exhibit box is complete on
the east and west sides. Site work has begun along Michigan Street in front of DeVos Performance Hall,
along with installation of the snow melt system in front of the Hall. The East Hall and Grand Hall will be
accessible until the new Exhibit Hall opens in late November. Mr. Sommers added that the Grand Center
box office is closed because of the difficulty in providing safe access. Patrons are directed to purchase
tickets through the Van Andel Arena® box office or TicketMaster outlets.

Iv. Committee Reports
Building Committee

Mr. Frey stated that the Building Committee did not meet due to the construction accident.
Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated the Operations Committee did not meet in June. The Committee will meet on July
16™ to discuss MDOT’s plans to refurbish bridges on I-196 east of US-131.

Mr. Helmstead reported that the CVB has confirmed 67 groups for DeVos Place, with 87 “tentatives” on
the books. The CVB sales team is working with Progressive AE and Steelcase to coordinate a training
program for meeting planners in Washington, D.C. The CVB is distributing its new “800,000” brochure
to local organizations. The CVB is working on a five-year contract with the Michigan Floral Association
to hold its tradeshow in conjunction with the Garden Show.

Finance Committee
Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report.

a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period May 16 — June 13, 2003

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve payment of disbursements and payroll
totaling 34, 264,725.08. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for the
Van Andel Arena® and Grand Center for the period ended May 31, 2003. Motion carried unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statements Prepared by Beene Garter LLP
Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended May 31, 2003. Motion carried
unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25,2003 -3

d. Amendment to Fiscal Year 2004 Capital Budget

Mr. Heacock recommended approval of an amendment to include $25,000 in the fiscal year 2004 capital
budget. This amount was approved in the fiscal year 2003 budget to refurbish banquet rooms at the Van
Andel Arena®. Due to the calendar of events, completion of the project during the fiscal year was not
possible. The project is scheduled to be completed in July when use of the rooms is expected to decrease.
However, the timing of the project falls outside of the fiscal year in which it was approved.

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the amendment to the fiscal year 2004
capital budget to include a $25,000 line item for banquet room refurbishment. Motion carried
unanimously.

V. Amendment No. 6 to Construction Manager Agreement

Mr. Sommers recommended approval of Amendment No. 6 to Construction Manager Agreement
regarding billable rates. The new rates fall within the contracted range of 3%-5% and contain cost of
living and wage increases.

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve Amendment No. 6 to Construction
Manager Agreement. Motion carried unanimously.

VL SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that the Mormon Tabernacle Choir will be performing at the Van Andel
Arena® tonight and encouraged everyone to attend this once-in-a-lifetime event. Mayor Logie
acknowledged Chuck Stoddard for his assistance in bringing the Choir to Grand Rapids. Mayor Logie
added that the 360-voice choir is comprised of all volunteers who commit to a nine-month process of
auditions and classes before they are permitted to join the choir. 25 members of the Temple Square
Orchestra accompany the choir. To create its familiar sound, the choir tours with its own three-manual
electronic organ that features sounds sampled from the choir’s home organ. Over 560 people in the
entourage have flown in from Salt Lake City, with the rest of the tour traveling in 10 buses. Four
luggage trucks, a semi with instruments, and a van for audio-visual equipment are part of the fleet, which
travels with its own medical staff beyond the 10 physicians and dentists who are choir members. Net
proceeds from the concert will be contributed to the Lake Michigan Academy and the Chamber Choir of
Grand Rapids.

Mr. MacKeigan stated that upcoming events at the Arena include Cher, John Mayer/Counting Crows,
and Ringo Starr concerts, WWE wrestling that will be televised, Detroit Red Wings, and the circus. Mr.
MacKeigan has a verbal commitment for a ZZ Top concert.

VI  Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to
Lease Agreement with DP Fox Football Holdings, L.L.C.

Mr. Wendt recommended approval of the First Amendment to Lease Agreement with DP Fox Football
Holdings, L.L.C. The original lease negotiated in 1998 provided that the Rampage football season occur
between May and August when the Van Andel Arena® is not so active. The rent was established on the
premise that the Rampage season would be during a “slow” time of the year for the Arena. This past
year the Rampage changed its playing season to February-April/May when it entered into a contract with
NBC for televised games. The scheduling of games earlier in the calendar year changes the terms of the
lease. In addition, this time frame is the most active for the Arena and the CAA believes it should be
compensated adequately for the Rampage’s use of premium dates. In February, Mr. Frey, Mr.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25,2003 -4

MacKeigan, and Mr. Wendt began negotiations with DP Fox for a new lease. Mr. Wendt summarized
key provisions of the First Amendment:

e Arena will receive 20% of DP Fox concession revenue per cap per came for turnstile attendance
above 8,000 (Arena currently receives nothing)

e Arena will receive 20% of DP Fox catering revenue (suites) per game when turnstile attendance
exceeds 8,000 (Arena currently receives nothing)

e DP Fox to share 50/50 with Arena league mandated venue upgrades and to pay 100% of TV contract
mandated upgrades (Arena currently responsible for 100% of league mandated upgrades)

o For remaining term of agreement, Arena will receive and additional $10,000 per game for each
Friday, Saturday, and Sunday game during February and March where turnstile attendance is greater

than 8,000
Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Resolution Approving and
Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to Lease Agreement with DP Fox Football Holdings, L.L.C.
Abstain: Logie. Motion carried.
VIII. Other Business
The July 23, 2003, CAA Board meeting has been canceled.

IX. Public Comments

None.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:20 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

August 27, 2003

GRAND GALLERY

Bay Area Interiors, our subcontractor continues to grind the epoxy tetrazzo system. They have placed the
terrazzo mix. Grinding is well underway and final polishing is beginning. Painting is complete along with the
installation of the snake light. The exterior sections of the canopies have received paint and lighting. Painting
of the high architectural feature wall is complete.

In the Meeting Rooms, drywall finishing, painting and ceiling grid installations ate complete. The acoustic
wall panel installation is complete on the Meeting Level, and in process on the street level. Carpet is in
process on the meeting level along with wood doots.

Ceramic tile installations are complete in the Meeting Level, Street Level and Patking Level Restrooms. Toilet
partitions and fixtures are installed as well. Ceramic tile work is now progressing in the concessions and
public restroom areas on the first floor adjacent to the Exhibit Hall.

The Grand Gallery drywall hanging is complete. Andy J. Egan Mechanical Co. and ElecTech are complete
with the HVAC systems that serve most of the Grand Gallery. Final testing and system balancing is in

process.

Preparation work is underway for the addition of an additional escalator between the Skyway Level and the
Meeting Level. This item was added during the coutse of the wotk when it was determined that the budget
could absotb the cost of the wotk.

Overall the Grand Gallery and Meeting spaces remain on track for completion as scheduled.

EXHIBIT HALL

Andy J. Egan Mechanical has set cooling towers, chillers and ait handling units that serve the Exhibit Hall.
Piping of these units is complete and is being tested and filled. Target Sheet Metal, Inc. has installed the high
ductwork in the Exhibit Hall along with the lighting and fire protection subcontractors. The equipment in the
Box Truss Mechanical Rooms is being prepared to be tested next month.

Page 1



The enclosure of the Exhibit Box is complete. Soffit trim will continue on the East and West. Roofing, brick
and overhead doors at the dock are complete.

SITE WORK

Wotk has progressed well along Michigan Street and in front of DeVos Hall These ateas, along with the
Monroe drop off lane are to be completed the fall of 2003. Planter Wall construction along the West side of
the Exhibit Hall began in April and continues. The snowmelt slab has been placed in front of DeVos Hall,
and finished pavers are installed.

PHASE 3

The Welsh Auditorium has been demolished via implosion on 07/19/03. Sorting and hauling off of the
rubble and debris has been progressing well and will continue into mid August.

The Scene Shop area of the Grand Center renovation is underway. Selective demo is complete. Void filling

below the existing floor was performed again in this area prior to walls being erected. The new room layouts
were complete and drywall hanging is in process. The area is to be completed in eatly September.

WILLIAM D. SEWALL
Construction Manager

Page 2



Item IV.a.i.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING COMPLETION OF THE DEVOS
PERFORMANCE HALL INTERIOR RENOVATION PROJECT AND
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING ENTERING INTO CERTAIN
AGREEMENTS RELATED THERETO

Boardmember , seconded by Boardmember
moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
has undertaken the construction, renovation, improvement, enlarging and equipping of the
DeVos Place convention center, including DeVos Performance Hall (collectively the "New
Convention Center") which it owns and operates; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the New Convention Center is currently estimated at
$211,254,709, which cost has been fully provided for from public and private sources including
a Grand Action Committee ("Grand Action") cash and in-kind contribution of $33,000,000 (the
"Grand Action Contribution"); and

WHEREAS, although not originally included as a part of the New Convention Center
project, Grand Action has proposed that the renovation of the interior of DeVos Performance
Hall (the "DeVos Hall Interior Project") be included as a part of the New Convention Center
project; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the DeVos Hall Interior Project is $4,400,000 (the
"Project Cost"); and

WHEREAS, Grand Action has agreed to contribute to the CAA, in addition to the Grand
Action Contribution, the total amount of the Project Cost, i.e., $4,400,000 (the "Additional
Grand Action Contribution"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA has agreed to undertake the DeVos Hall Interior Project as a part
of the New Convention Center project and to enter into certain agreements related thereto.

RESOLVED:

1. That the CAA proceed with the DeVos Hall Interior Project as generally
described in a letter dated January 17, 2003, from Richard L. VanGelderon, AIA, of Progressive
AE ("Progressive") to Jon R. Nunn, Executive Director, of Grand Action, attached hereto as
Attachment I in accordance with a budget set forth in Attachment II attached hereto.

2. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute a

Memorandum of Understanding Related To DeVos Performance Hall Interior Renovation for
and on behalf of the CAA pursuant to which Grand Action agrees to make the Additional Grand

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139824



Action Contribution in substantially the form presented at this meeting with such modifications
as are not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to content by the Chairman of the CAA
and as to form by the CAA's legal counsel.

3. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute an agreement
for and on behalf of the CAA with Progressive for architectural services related to the DeVos
Hall Interior Project consistent with the Budget, or an assignment of such agreement with Grand
Action, approved as to content by the Chairman of the CAA and as to form by the CAA's legal
counsel.

4. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute an
amendment to the Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager for
and on behalf of the CAA with Erhardt/Hunt, a joint venture, dated February, 2001, for
construction of the DeVos Hall Interior Project consistent with the Budget approved as to content
by the Chairman of the CAA and as to form by the CAA's legal counsel.

5. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute an agreement
for and on behalf of the CAA with (a) a supplier of a multi media sound system and (b) a
contractor to refurbish seats both consistent with the Budget as recommended by the CAA's
Building Committee and approved as to content by the Chairman of the CAA and as to form by
the CAA's legal counsel.

6. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute any
additional agreements related to the DeVos Hall Interior Project consistent with the Budget as
recommended by the CAA's Building Committee and approved as to content by the Chairman of
the CAA and as to form by the CAA's legal counsel.

7. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the
same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

Dated: August 27,2003

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139824



CERTIFICATION

L, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA") do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held August 27, 2003, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant
to, and in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: August 27, 2003
Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139824



ProgiéssIveaE

Prograssive AE

1811 4 Mile Road, NE

Grand Replds, MI 49525 2442
616 367 2664 VOICE

616 361 1493 FAX

www.progressiveae.com.

ATTACHMENT L

January 17, 2003

Mr. Jon Nunn, Executive Director -
Grand Action

The Waters Building

120 Lyon NW

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Re: DeVos Performance Hall A/E Services

Jon:

The Progressive AE design team is delighted with the opportunity to submit this
proposal for services to complete the transformation of the DeVos Place project with
the final element, the interior renovation of DeVos Performance Hall. The purpose of
thie letler is to convey our understanding of the project, to propose our design
services, and to request compensation required.

This letter is provided in anticipation of preparing an AlA document B141 Owner-
Architect Agreement. The primary understanding shaping this letter proposal is that
the DeVos Hall Interior Renovation will be constructed by Erhard¥Hunt, a Joint
Venture, currently the CM for DeVos Place. The contract for the services described
will be reassigned to the Convention-Arena Authorlty as owners of the facility
sometime In the near future. Grand Action will be responsible for payment of fees for
services incurred until such time of reassignment.

Project Scope

The architectural and engineering design wark will address the interior transformation
of the performance hall giving the space a completely refreshed amblance. The
physical boundaries of the renovation extend from the wall of the Keeler Lobby on
the east to the proscenium wall of the stage house on the west. From north to south,
the project extends to the existing outside walls of the theater structure.

The design objectives for the project are as follows:

e Address Americans with Disabilitles Act (ADA) issues in house seating areas;
orchestra, mezzanine, balcony. ADA seating requirements will be met with the
intent of minimizing the impact on seating capacity. New elevator equipment has
been-purchasad as part of the primary DeVos Place project, the enclosure and
equipment room are not part of this scope of work but wili be resolved under
separate agreement with the CAA.

o Refurbishment of existing theater seating.

+ Update and significantly improve the look and feel of the house interior and
adjoining entry paths:

1. Provide new interior finish for walls, flooring, and painting of house ceiling
clouds and balcony csiling.

2. Enhance lighting in side circulation and balcony overhang areas with color
wall wash and accent tixtures. e e

3. Replace balcony light fixtures. . e

4, Redssign all balcony fronts to create a refreshed look and improve sight
lines.

o Coordinate the introduction of a multi-media video system, including an
evaluation of the existing sound reinforcement system.

The scope of work does not envision significant changes to heating, ventilation and
air conditioning systems. The mechanical équipment supporting the house and stage
is being upgraded under the primary convention center project. :



* ProgiressIVeAE

Jon Nunn - DeVos Performance Hali Interlors
January 20, 2003
Page 2

The scope of work does not include the rearrangement of ceiling structures, catwalks,
or house rigging that support theater lighting.

Although discussed during earlier concept design phases, there will be no
rearrangement or reconfiguration of seating and aisles. Refurbishment consists of
refinishing wood elements, repainting, repairing step-lights, reupholstering and
replacing seat units on existing anchors.

Team Approach

Progressive completed preliminary conceptual design work during 2002, The images
developed then provide the basis for the current design direction and were the
toundation of tha work of Erhardt Hunt providing a conceptual construction budget.

With a revised scope as represented above, we will move ahead to complete
schematic design requiring the design team to expand beyond Progressive's in-
house architectural and engineering staif to include specialized consultants.
Consultants are needed in the areas of theater acoustics, multi-media system design,
possible sound system enhancement, and lighting design. We have identifled these
consultants with the expectation that their programmatic and practical input is
important to achieve the successful performance of the renovated room. Their
expertise is important in defining, developing and communicating these complex
issues especially to the user arts groups. This team will then continue with design
development, construction documents, bid proocase support, and construction
observation services.

Wae recognize the critical nature of the construction schedule requiring the integration
of renovation activity with the performing arts seasons. A phased construction
approach is preferred by the owner/operators occurring through the summer of 2003
and summer of 2004. In order to reach this goal, planning and design are to begin
immediately. )

Compensation

We propose to provide the services described above as a change of services

relating to the work originally initiated in the base services agreement that
Progressive AE has in effect with the Convention Arena Authority.

We propose to provide the work as outlined in this letter for a stipulated sum of
$200,000.00. The services provided by specialized consultants who are retained at
the architect's expense are provided in addition to this amount as follows:

Lighting design Schuler & Shook, Chicago
Theater consulting Schuler & Shook, Chicago
Acoustical consulting Kirkegaard & Associates, Chicago
Sound assessment Kirkegaard & Associates, Chicago
Multi-media consulting Intaglio, Grand Rapids

Total Consultants Fees $88,000.00

Total Compensation . $288,000.00

Payment terms and conditions and stipulations regarding reimbursable expenses
remain the same as those provided under the terms of the current base service
agreement. We estimate reimbursable expenses to be $14,500. ’



P

foGieSSIVeAE

Jon Nunn - DeVos Performance Hall Interiors
January 20, 2003
Page 3

‘We trust this proposal meets your needs. We are ready to continue the work

immediately upon your authorization. if this proposal is acceptable, please sign on
the line provided below. An amendment to the current bas e contract will then be
prepared.

Thank you for the opportunity to continue with the completion of this work and the
final development of DeVos Place.

Richard L/VanGelderen, AlA
Director of Interior Architecture

Michael L. Perry, AlA
Senior Vice President
Facllity Design Group Leader

RLV/imc

Proposal

01200304/003

Progressive AE - Mary Belh Ruskowsk!
X:AWMAJ01101200304\2003\rv0117p.doc

Sree Bm%;/ 3)o3

Title



Attachment I1

DEVOS HALL INTERIOR PROJECT BUDGET

Direct Construction Costs
Construction Contingency
Multi Media Sound System

Refurbish Seats

Total Construction Estimate

Professional Services

Architect's fees paid for services to 1/17/03
Architect's fees to be paid for services after 1/17/03

Consultants

Reimbursable expenses

Owner's Contingency

12.5% of Construction Costs

Owner's out-of-pocket expenses
Total estimated cost

! Owners budget - no architect's fee.
2 Requires prior approval of Owner's Representative — Dale H. Sommers

3 Not to exceed.

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139822

$2,186,315.00
270,000.00
310,000.00"
750,000.00
$3,516,315.00

$143,685.00

200,000.00
105,000.00°
35,000.00°

$483,685.00

$320,000.00

80,000.00
$4,400,000.00



Item I'V.a.1.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING RELATED
TO DEVOS PERFORMANCE HALL INTERIOR RENOVATION

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the "Memorandum") is entered
into between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA
AUTHORITY (the "CAA") and the GRAND ACTION COMMITTEE ("Grand Action").

RECITALS

A. The CAA is an authority created by the City of Grand Rapids and the County of
Kent pursuant to the Convention Facility Authority Act, Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan
of 1999 for the purpose, in part, of constructing, renovating, improving, enlarging, equipping,
financing and operating convention facilities including specifically the new DeVos Place
convention center, including DeVos Performance Hall (collectively, the "New Convention
Center").

B. Grand Action is a community organization formed for civic purposes including
gaining public and private support for the New Convention Center.

C. Grand Action has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding dated April 1,
2003, agreeing to contribute to the CAA $33,000,000 in in-kind and cash contributions (the
"Grand Action Contribution") toward completion of the New Convention Center.

D. As originally planned, the work related to the New Convention Center did not
include the renovation of the interior to DeVos Performance Hall.

E. Grand Action has proposed that the renovation of the interior of DeVos
Performance Hall (the "DeVos Hall Interior Project") as generally described in a letter dated
January 17, 2003, from Richard L. VanGelderen, AIA, of Progressive AE, Grand Rapids,
Michigan, and attached hereto as Attachment I, be included as a part of the New Convention
Center project.

F. The cost of the DeVos Hall Interior Project is $4,400,000 as set forth in the
budget attached hereto as Attachment II (the "Budget").

G. Grand Action has agreed to contribute to the CAA, in addition to the Grand
Action Contribution, the full amount of the Budget, i.e., $4,400,000 (the "Additional Grand
Action Contribution") to be used by the CAA to complete the DeVos Hall Interior Project as
generally described in Attachment 1.

H. The CAA has agreed to complete, or cause the completion of, the DeVos Hall
Interior Project at a cost not in excess of the Budget.

L The CAA and Grand Action desire to set forth in this Memorandum an agreed

upon timetable for payment of the Grand Action Additional Contribution for completion of the
DeVos Hall Interior Project.

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139822



UNDERSTANDING

The CAA and Grand Action acknowledge and agree with respect to the Additional Grand
Action Contribution that:

1. Grand Action has previously made payments totaling $274,646.80 for services
related to the DeVos Hall Interior Project.

2. Grand Action will make cash contributions to the CAA for the DeVos Hall
Interior Project as follows.

Payment Date Amount

April 1, 2004 $460,353.20
May 1, 2004 733,000.00
June 1, 2004 733,000.00
July 1, 2004 733,000.00
August 1, 2004 733,000.00
September 1, 2004 733,000.00

$4,125,353.20

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Dated: , 2003 By:

John H. Logie, Chairman

GRAND ACTION COMMITTEE

Dated: , 2003 By:

Jon R. Nunn, Executive Director

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139822



Progiessiveak

Progressive AE

1811 4 Mile Road, NE

Grand Raplds, Ml 49525 2442
616 361 2664 VOICE

616 361 1493 FAX

www.progressiveae.com.

ATTACHMENT I

January 17, 2003

Mr. Jon Nunn, Executive Director
Grand Action

The Waters Building

120 Lyon NW

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Re: DeVos Performance Hali A/E Services

Jon:

The Progressive AE design team is delighted with the opportunity to submit this
proposal for services to complete the transformation of the DeVos Place project with
the final element, the interior renovation of DeVos Performance Hall. The purpose of
thie letier is to convey our understanding of the project, {0 propose our design
services, and to request compensation required.

This letter is provided in anticipation of preparing an AlA document B141 Owner-
Architect Agreement. The primary understanding shaping this letter proposal is that
the DeVos Hall Interior Renovation will be constructed by Erhardt/Hunt, a Joint
Venture, currently the CM for DeVos Place. The contract for the services described
will be reassigned to the Convention-Arena Authorily as owners of the facility
sometime In the near future. Grand Action will be responsible for payment of fees for
services incurred until such time of reassignment.

Project Scope

The architectural and engineering design work will address the interior transformation
of the performance hall giving the space a completely refreshed ambiance. The
physical boundaries of the renovation extend from the wall of the Keeler Lobby on
the east to the proscenium wall of the stage house on the west. From north to south,
the project extends to the existing outside walls of the theater structure.

The design objectives for the project are as follows:

. Address Americans ‘with Disabilities Act (ADA) issues in house seating areas;
orchestra, mezzanine, balcony. ADA seating requirements will be met with the
intent of minimizing the impact on seating capacity. New elevator equipment has
been-purchasad as part of the primary DeVos Place project, the enclosure and
equipment room are not part of this scope of work but will be resolved under
separate agreement with the CAA.

» Refurbishment of existing theater seating.

» Update and significantly improve the look and feel of the house interior and
adjoining entry paths:

1. Provide new interior finish for walls, flooring, and painting of house ceiling
clouds and balcony ceiling.

2. Enhance lighting in slde circulation and balcony overhang areas with color
wall wash and accent fixtures. e,

3. Replace balcony light fixtures. . : SR

4. Redesign all balcony fronts to create a refreshed look and improve sight
lines.

« Coordinate the introduction of a multi-media video system, including an
evaluation of-the existing sound reinforcement system.

The scope of work does not envislon significant changes to heating, ventilation and
air conditioning systems. The mechanical équipment supporting the house and stage
is being upgraded under the primary convention center project.



* ProgresSsiVeAE

Jon Nunn — DeVos Perormance Hall interlors
January 20, 2003
Page 2

The scope of work does not include the rearrangement of ceiling structures, catwalks,
or house rigging that support theater lighting.

Although discussed during earlier concept design phases, there will be no
rearrangement or reconfiguration of seating and aisles. Refurbishment consists of
refinishing wood elements, repainting, repairing step-lights, reupholstering and
replacing seat unils on existing anchors.

Team Approach

Progressive completed preliminary conceptual design work during 2002. The images
developed then provide the basis for the current design direction and were the
foundation of the work of Erhardi Hunt providing a conceptual construction budget.

With & revised scope as represented above, we will move ahead to complete
schematic design requiring the design team to expand bayond Progressive’s in-
house architectural and engineering stalf 1o include specialized consultants.
Consultants are needed in the areas of theater acoustics, multi-media system design,
possible sound system enhancement, and lighting design. We have identifled these
consultants with the expectation that their programmatic and practical input is
important to achieve the successful performance of the renovated room. Their
expertise is importantin defining, developing and communicating these complex
issues especially to the user arts groups. This team will then continue with design
development, construction documents, bid prooese support, and construction
observation services.

We recognize the critical nature of the construction schedule requiring the Integration
of renovation activity with the performing arts seasons. A phased construction
approach is preferred by the owner/operators occurring through the summer of 2003
and summer of 2004, In order to reach this goal, planning and design are to begin

immediately.

Compensation

We propose to provide the services described above as a change of services

relating to the work originally initiated in the base services agreement that
Progressive AE has in sffect with the Convention Arena Authority.

We propose to provide the work as outlined in this letter for a stipulated sum of
$200,000.00. The services provided by specialized consultants who are retained at
the architect's expense are provided in addition to this amount as follows:

Lighting design Schuler & Shook, Chicago
Theater consulting Schuler & Shook, Chicago
Acoustical consulting Kirkegaard & Associates, Chicago
Sound assessment Kirkegaard & Associates, Chicago
Multi-media consulting Intaglio, Grand Rapids

Total Consultants Fees $88,000.00

Total Compensation ) $268,000.00

Payment terms and conditions and stipulations regarding reimbursable expenses
remain the same as those provided under the terms of the current base service
agreement. We estimate reimbursable expenses to be $14,500. '



P

fogre

SS

IVEAE

Jon Nunn — DeVos Performance Hall Interiors
January 20, 2003
Page 3

‘We trust this proposal meets your needs. We are ready to continue the work

immediately upon your authorization. If this proposal is ac ceptable, please sign on
the line provided below. An amendment to the current base contract will then be

prepared.

Thank you for the opportunity to continue with the completion of this wark and the
final development of DeVos Place.

Richard L/VanGelderen, AlA

Director of Interior Architecture

Michael L. Perry, AlA
Senior Vice President
Facility Deslgn Group Leader

RLV/ime

Proposal

01200304/003

Progressive AE - Mary Belh Ruskowskl
X:AWMAJ01\01200304\2003\rv0117p.doc




Attachment I1

DEVOS HALL INTERIOR PROJECT BUDGET

Direct Construction Costs
Construction Contingency
Multi Media Sound System

Refurbish Seats

Total Construction Estimate

Professional Services

Architect's fees paid for services to 1/17/03
Architect's fees to be paid for services after 1/17/03

Consultants

Reimbursable expenses

Owner's Contingency

12.5% of Construction Costs

Owner's out-of-pocket expenses
Total estimated cost

' Owners budget - no architect's fee.
2 Requires prior approval of Owner's Representative — Dale H. Sommers

3 Not to exceed.

GRAPIDS 61448-45 139822

$2,186,315.00
270,000.00
310,000.00
___750,000.00'
$3,516,315.00

$143,685.00

200,000.00
105,000.00?
35,000.00°

$483,685.00

$320,000.00

80,000.00
$4,400,000.00



Item IV.b.1.

NMEMERANDUINV

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS
DATE: June 30, 2003

TO: Grand Rapids- Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

FROM: Ingrid Scott-Weekley, Director
Equal Opportunity Department

SUBJECT: M/WBE Policy and Administrative Guideline Revisions

The City of Grand Rapids MWBE Policy has been in existence in one form or another since the
1980’s; and in recent years has undergone numerous revisions as the federal courts have rendered
sweeping decisions regarding race conscious programs. Essentially, the courts have opined that race
conscious programs are justified only in those instances where a factual predicate has been established
evidencing that discrimination exists and a narrowly tailored remedy is warranted.

In an effort to ensure that the City’s race and gender conscious MWBE program remained consistent
with case law, the City has conducted two disparity studies in recent years. The first study was
conducted in 1990 and revealed that discrimination in the construction industry in Kent and Ottawa
Counties was sufficiently pervasive to warrant establishment of a race and gender conscious program
with 11% MBE and 1% WBE goals. A follow up or “second generation” study conducted in 1999
revealed that although disparities continue to exist in the utilization of MWBE contractors and
subcontractors in comparison to their white male counterparts, those disparities did not meet the ever-
increasing legal standards established by the courts to warrant the continuation of the current MWBE
program.

As a result of evolving case law and these studies, numerous revisions have been made to the City’s
MWBE Policy and attendant Administrative Guidelines. These revisions include but are not limited
to:

REFERENCE: REVISION
e City Commission Policy: Paragraph 1 e Adjustment of the MBE goal from 11% to 9%,
City Commission Policy: Paragraph 7 e Establishment of sunset provisions to phase out
the current program,
e Administrative guidelines: SectionI1.1.2 e Adoption by reference of the MWBE Policy and

Guidelines by the following authorities:
Convention Center Arena Authority (CCAA),
City-County Building Authority (CCBA),
Downtown Development Authority (DDA),
Grand Rapids Building Authority (GRBA), and
the Tax Investment Financing District (TIFD);
e Administrative guidelines: Section X.10.2 e Applicability of the MWBE Policy appeals
provision to the aforementioned authorities, when
warranted.




Grand Rapids Building Authority
Page 2
June 30, 2003

In addition to these revisions, the City has established a new Economic Opportunity Plan (EOP). The
EOP details numerous strategic initiatives that allow us to achieve our supplier diversity objectives
through race and gender neutral means.

In an effort to assure that all authorities are made aware of the policy provisions and the direction in
which the City is headed with regard to supplier diversity, we are requesting that said authorities adopt

the current policy and guidelines as well as any future revisions made to the same.

Authorities will be updated on future changes as they occur.



, = - ; ,' BT B % 3y . ki
4" = R Ve oy £
| =~

NING YOUR MEETING WILL BE A SNAP.

From our new, state-of-the-art, one-million square foot convention
facility connected to our 700-room Four-Star hotel, to our pristine
beaches, championship golf courses, and eclectic nightlife — Michigan’s
West Coast™ is the ideal place for your clients to get their work
done — while having a great time in the process.

To find out more about our premier meeting facilities,
accommodations, and nearby attractions, call 1-800-678-9859, or
simply go to our website.

DEVOS PLACE

Grand Rapids/Kent County
Convention & Visitors Burea'
www.meetgrandrapids.org

Amway Grand Plaza Hotel
www.amwaygrand.com

Michigan’s West Coa



RESOURCE GUIDE

DeVos Place

Grand Rapids, Michigan
www.visitgrandrapids.org

From our new, high-performance convention center to our
sandy beaches, championship golf courses, and thriving
nightlife — Michigan’s West Coast is the perfect place for
convention delegates to get their work done while having
fun at the same time.

From the great lake to the grand city, there's a world of
pleasure awaiting you in Michigan’s West Coast. Enjoy
charming seaside villages a thousand miles from the sea.
The sand and surf of Lake Michigan are just a short drive
away.

Exciting nightlife, entertainment, first-class hotels, and a
new convention center are all within the heart of Grand
Rapids. Walk the downtown river, lose yourself in the plants
and sculptures of Frederik Meijer Gardens & Sculpture Park,
and visit museums for history and art.

Experience the latest innovations in convention and
meeting facilities when the $220 million DeVos Place
convention center opens this December. The | million-
square-foot facility will offer an exhibition hall the size
of three football fields and its ballroom will be one of the
nation's largest.

Adjacent to DeVos Place is the elegant 700-room,
4-Diamond 4-Star, Amway Grand Plaza Hotel. Meeting
rooms are abundant and guests enjoy their newly
designated 5-Diamond restaurant.

Grand Rapids DeVos Place from the river

94 EXECUTIVE UPDATE AUGUST 2003

Grand Rapids downtown

Highlights on Michigan’s West Coast
Special events including Holland's Tulip Time, Muskegon’s
Tall Ships and Grand Haven’s Coast Guard Festival
Art galleries and boutiques
Michigan's newest entertainment district
One of the top three golf locations in the Great Lakes
Professional baseball, hockey, basketball, and football

Center Specs

A total area of | million square feet

A 160,000-square-foot exhibition hall

A ballroom to accommodate 2,540 for banquets
- A 2446-seat theater on site

A 12,700-seat arena connected by skywalk

CONTACT

George Helmstead

Vice President of Sales

Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau
140 Monroe Center NW, Suite 300

Grand Rapids, M 49503

(800) 678-9859

Fax: (616) 459-7291

ghelmstead@visitgrandrapids.org
www.meetgrandrapids.org



Item IV.c.1.

NENESRANDUM

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: August 14, 2003

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM: Jana M. Wallace \»/
Acting Assistant to t)ye City Manager

SUBJECT: Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
June 27, 2003 $ 30,019.61 $ 281,145.50
July 14, 2003 53,995.90 4,070,332.60
July 28, 2003 6,361.68 342,058.23
August 14, 2003 60,502.08 3,774,552.30
Payroll - 06/13/2003 2,066.56 -
Payroll — 06/27/2003 1,920.76 -
Payroll — 07/11/2003 2,033.96 -
Payroll — 07/25/2003 1,920.76 -
Payroll — 08/08/2003 2,190.94 -

Disbursements by Fund $ 161,012.25 $ 8,468,088.63

Total disbursements for the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period June 13 through August 14, 2003, were $8,629,100.88.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



£0024290 Ml sixgoAedojsaureed
juswAed Joj passad0ld Sa2I0AU] je)0L

Juno2oy BunesadQ woyy Juswied J0j papiugng SadloAu] ejot
JUNO22Y UOKINIISUOD WL} JUdWAR 10) papiWIgnS Sa210AU| {810 )

LL'soL'Lle $

19'6L0°0c _ $

os'sviisz $

sasuadxa uononisuods-uou / bupesado = O
sasuadxa paje|as uoon)suo) = D

S9oJAI9g |edsld A)D AQ pepiwgng SadloAu] - jejol-qns 10°260°LE  $
llosAed £0/€1/90 404 quiu0d dakojdwsa - LG ssebeuew uiwpy  €£00Z/€1/90 007091 1G¥ - uoesodiod uswainay VYINDI
llosAed €0/€1/90 104 SqUIUOS sakojdwayiaojdws - vL0y SBw uwpy  £002/€1/90 00°0¥2 V10 - uojjesodioD Juswaiiey YINOI
€00z ABW - J8JuUa)) pueIc) 10} SODIAISS JOMSS pue J3JepN £002/61/90 90'€G/'e Jainseal) Ao spidey pueis
£002 ludy - ssepew Bugesedo a1 seolues (BB €002/0€/S0  00°26€ O711d Wbum uosudIq
£00¢ [udy - uonebiy| uew|i1 /}210uU0D Jud) a1 SeOIAISS BB €00Z/0€/S0 0¥'2L0°L OT1d WBum uosuaIq
£002 |udy - Juswabeuew oyjenyueu)sapad a1 saolnes [B6a7  €002/0€/50  00'Z88 O71d WBum uosuIq
£002 ludy - 8jnpayds juswAied uonoy puelo a1 saolaies [e6a7  €002/0€/S0 00'HSL OT11d Wbum uosudig
£002 [udy - Ssuomaly @ Ajueusem Jool a1 sedmes |67 €002/0€/S0 0F'2Se OT1d WBUM uosunIq
£00Z A - 19)uaD PUBID JOj SBOIAISS [eDUIOB]T  €002/90/90  S1'9E0°T ABiau3 siewnsuo)
1eq We$ Aoljod Aupgel| sieoujo g siojoaulp a1 xey saul| sniding  €002/€1/S0 00°0S1 AJBG JWUN YsTY Jaybe|ie ' Jnyuy
S991A198 |easiq A)19 Aq papiwqng Sad10AU|
Jabeuey josfoid Aq pepiwiqng Sad10AU] - [eJ01-qNs  01'€20'082 $
uosuyor paqoy s, ONS Aq Bupinsuod / mairal Ajjioe) alis-UO  €002/90/90  80°06€ Jsjua puer - ONS
£002 ‘6 ®uUN[ N1y} - Juswajeqe SOJSSQSe WNLOHPNY USIDM  €002/60/90  0S°0EP'Z8 Ju| SRVIAIBS [EjuSWUOIIAUT ANenD
¥ 10 ¥ ‘€002 AeN - sabueyo pajsenbal ;SUMO  £002/60/90 69'v¥L'S Jv aAissaiboid
¥ 10 € ‘€00 ABN - sabueyo pajsenbas soumO  €002/60/90  €6°€29'S 3v aaissaiboid
¥ 10 Z ‘€002 Ae\ - sebueyo pajsenbal soumO  €002/60/90 € LOL‘L 3V aaissaiboid
10 | ‘€002 Ael - sebueyo pajsenbasssumO  €002/60/90 00009 Jv anIssalboid
€002 Ae| - aAnejuasaidal sjos)yole a)is-uQ  £002/94/90 00'569°'0L 3v aAissalboid
£00Z AN - saoues ubisap [einjoapyoly  £002/91/90 12°626'701 3v enissaiboid
[eusjew snopiezey Jo [eAoway  £002/94/90 00°0v. 9V sejuedwo) yosiid
£002/90/90 Ny} sebieyo suoyd sejnjjeo saAnejuasaldal sJoUMO  €002/LL/90  8E'lgl SUOHEJIUNWIWOD [S1X8N
Bunqeo jeyuozuoy - yosfoud Buyged aunonyseyu|  €002/21/90 00°92€°'LL ou| ensjAz-usked
£002 ‘c) aunp Bujpus pouad Joj suoenjead yoop Buipeo]  €00Z/LE/S0  88°026'v  $ ou| Joy|lem HeD
J1abBeuepy j03foid Aq papiuqng Sa82j0AU|
peAladal S3d1A19s | padinboe sjelajews Jo uonduosaq ajeq junowy o9Aed
9210AU|

Koljod Buideayyoog Juaung ayl Aq pazuoyiny se ‘€00z ‘2Z Sunft uo JuswAed Joj passa20id S2I0AU| JO IS
ALRMOHLNY VNIYV / NOLLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3M - SAIdVY ANVYO

(oNeoNoNoNoNoNoNoNo O

(CHONONORONGNONONONO NGNS



€00Z260.0 Mwl spcgphedojsaujeso

sosuadxs Buijesado / UORONISUOD-UON =

o

sasuadxa pajejas UOONIISUOD JSJUD UOIJUBAUOD = O

JuswAhed 10j passadnid SaJIOAU| [ejol  0S'8ZE'vZL'Y$
Wno2dy bunesado woiy yuswied 103 papiugng sad10AU| [eJ0L  06'S66'CS  $
JUNOJIY UORINIISUOD WL JuswAed JO) PARILIGNS S3N0AU| [ejo)  09°ZEE0L0'V$
$90IAI9S [easld A)1D Aq panlwgng s8d10AU] - [BJOL-qNS  06'S66'CS  $

£00Z AInf - Jobeuew aAneISIUNLDE 10} S)yoUSQ SOUBINSU]  €002/L2/90  2E2PE yneaH Koud

€002 aunf - SEOIAISS WeS)S BUAJY  €002/0€/90  00'6¥¥'GL SHOM 2Mand jo daqg KunoD e

£002 aunf - SAOIAISS WBS)S JBJUD puBID  €002/0€/90  SO'VEL'Z SYOM 2liand Jo 1daqg Auno jusH

€002 aunp - SAOIAISS Wiess yemiS  €002/0€/80 0004 SHOM 2liand jo 1deg Auno) ey

£00Z aunp - safiieyo Jomas/salem Jojows uonebiyl  €£002/20/L0 96 ¥ Jamseasj Auo spidey puess)

€00Z aunp - BUBIY JOJ SSOIAISS JaM3S pUB JAJBAA  £002/92/90 80'6LY'Z Jainseal| Auo spidey puels)

€002 |udy - asea) [1eqi00) 8) Sa0IAISS BB €002/0€/S0  00°LLL‘L OT1d WBUAA uosupjoiq

€002 aunr - YIemANS Joj SaoIAIes [BOLOSIT  €002/12/90  ZZTVOL'L ABusu3 sysumnsuo)

£002Z aunf - BUSJY JOj SROIAISS [BOUIORIT  €002/92/90  62'926'82 ABiau3 s1awnsuod

€002 ‘02 aunr ybnosy) saoines Buidaaxoog  €002/92/80  00°SLO°L ¢ dT1JeyeD auseg
Jabeuely 190foid Aq payuigng sadloAu| - [ejol-gnS  09°2E£€°0L0P$

£00Z aunf - Sa0IAIeS Jewebeusw pafold  €002/0€/90  00°096'01 H eleq ‘siawuwios

£00Z aunf - saolAJas aseyd uononIIsuUoD  €002/20/L0  09'G09°GlL auj syueynsuo) Bunse | sjeualey

£00z aunf - sBujeaws / Buninsuoo weyshs Qlundes  €002/€0/L0  00°004'C sisAg In2ag / aid ‘Jabuljjed © Auser

£00Z aunp - saojAles Juswalbeuew paloid  €002/0€/60  00°0L6°'LL ouj Bunynsuod Aeio d

Buiqeo Jaqy / Jaddoo - joafosd Buljqeo asnonuiseu]  €002/¥2/90  00°€LO'S ouj eujsjAZ-uakag

L€ # JuowAed ssaiBoud Jo) afeuleldy  €002/0€/90  00'¥60°2EC Junoody abeurelay vv/0 OM-HO

jeouoafe / suoseus / jesauab - uononiisuog :1¢ # yud ssaibold  €002/0€/90  00°065°26L'€$ QJNJUSA JUIOP V¥ [JUnH - Jpey3

Jabeuey 108loid Aq papiuwigns Sad10AU|
poAladal S89IAI3S | paiinboe sjeuajetl jo UonduIsSaqg ajed noury oalked
MUOALY

foljod Buideaypioog Jusuny syl Aq pazuoyiny se ‘€00z ‘v ANl Uo JuswiAed Joj passad0id S8210AU] JO 1SI
ALRIOHLNY VNNV / NOLLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO

0000000000

(ORONORONS NSNS



sasuadxa uogonisuco-uou / Buessdo = O
sasuadxe pajejas uolonIsuo) = 9
£002.220 mulf s pokedeqsauress

wowAed 10} passa00id S3OJOAU| [E10L _LE'GLY'SYE §

8o’lecs  §

junosdy Bupesado woy uawAed 10} PRGNS S3DJ0AU| [ej0L
€950zt _$

JNO3JY UOHINIISUOD WoJ) JudtiAed JO} PERjWGRS S3DJOAU] [Rl0)

S90JAI98 [B9S14 AND AQ PopIuqnS S3L0AU] - [e301-qNS 89°CLe9  §

Bugasui g00Z ‘SZ sunf Jo) Soeus f sabeleasg ©002/ST/80  89°/Z soneg @9yoD JoH pider O
€002 1snBny - 1ebeueiy aanensiulpe Joj sYjeUsq SOURINSY]  €00ZFL/L0  ZETKE yyeaH Auoud o
fioshed £0/52/20 103 quiuco sekojdws - Jop sJefeueis unupy  £00Z/SZ/L0 0009} 2Sp - uoneiodio) swaiay YNOI (o]
ftoaked 071 1/£0 10 quuoo safoidwe - Jop sieBeuews uwpy  €002/4 4/20 0009} LSy - uogeiodio) wswaRY YINDI (o]
Hiosked £0/52/20 10) Squwoo sofojdwessekoidiue - viop siBw urupy  €00Z/SZ/L0 00'9VE V0¥ - uogeiodioD weweimsy YINOI O
fiosked g0/1 4./20 10§ SquiLEo sakojdwe/okoidiue - Viop SJBw LWPY  €00Z/LL/Z0 00'9VE VI0p - uoieiodio) Juswaiey YWDl O
£00Z sequiddes - Ainp - eusry Joj auf sslemuonodoid al4  €00Z/BOV/0 68801 Jainseas] A spideypuely O
€00Z aunr - Yorep - YIEMAYS 10} SIOINISS JaMas pue BB €00/80//0  $LOS Jaunseasy Ao spidey puely QO
£002 Jequidag - Ainp - JlemAyS 1oy sulf ssjem uonosjoid any  €00Z/B0/Z0 GZ0E Jeinseas) fyp spidey puesy O
£00Z A\ - SIoiewW aAjegsiuRUpe oS 8 seovues fee]  €00Z/0E/00  08'9P9 OTid MBup uosupiid O
€00z Ae - wswsaibe ofof soeld SOASQ a1 Saonas 8697 €00Z/0E/00  00'Z9b OTid WBuMmuosupIQ  ©
£00Z Al - 3529 |[leqio0) 21 s3oIes [eBa7  ©00Z/0S/R0 O L65'L OTid wbumuosupld O
£00Z Ael - eweaibe Juawabeuew sepoe) a1 saowes @627 ©00Z/0E/0  00TLL OTd wbumuosunioiq O
£00Z AejN - eses ygO erseoies efe]  ©00Z/0E/S0  00'82 OTd wbumuosunpld O
£002 ABiN - juswaalbe wnipreys a1 seods BB ©002/0E/90 00252 OTid wbumuosunpiold O
£00Z yosepy - wawsbeuew swenueusspad 2 ssonies @67 £00Z/OEA0  00'9L1') OTid mbumuosupiolg O
£002 Yolep - uned nful Jswosno a1 saoinies 8897 €OOVOEAF0  OC22SE OTd wbup uosuppold O
€002 Yorey - oses) jjeqioo} @ seowes (267 ©O0Z/OEP0 00919 OTid Wbupmuosupiol O

soBeuep 309ford Aq papiuigng SS010AY] - [€101-GNS  £Z-908 LYE $
$O/L0/L0 - SO/L0O/0 10§ 8oURINSUY YU SI8pING MBUSY  €00T/Z0/L0 00001941 suopaps 9
€ JO € ‘2002 aunp - sabueyo pejsanbal BUMO  £00Z/80/Z0  00'GLE Jyawssalbold D
€ 10 Z ‘0002 aunp - saBueyd pajsenbal sloumO  €00Z/80/20  00'SZST Jv aassauboid o)
€ 40 | ‘£00Z aunr - sabueyo pajsenbal IBUMO  €00Z/80//0  €5'6.E°L v aalssasboid o}
£00Z dunr - aAyejuasaldal sjoopyoe 3US-UO  £00Z/80MZ0  00'068'CL Fyenssabold D
€00Z 2UN[ - SIUOSS3208 / UG JOUSIU jleH SOA 80 £00Z/BIV.0  SE'E68'S JyeassaiBoidy 9
£00Z dunf - s30iAI98 UBISAp (RIMSBIYAYY  €00Z/B¥Z0  ZE09S'06 Jv anssauboid o)
2002 ke -saoies ubBisep 3844 €00Z/9LB0 P26V 3v snissasboid 2
€002 ludy -seonues uBisap 3844 €00T/SO/S0  LL'9LE'S Jyoenssabold O
£002/90/20 Jo se sabieyo auoyd Jenjj20 saAneussaidal sJoUMD  €002/00/L0  ZE'8Z1 suoedIUNWIWOD BEN D
1 # WawAed - ;aua0 UORUBAUCY Joj swajshs Qunoss sdyiniy ~ €00Z/61/90  00'00V'EC Aunseg aEispiy O
9 # wowAed - ;PUSD UOHUBAUOD Joj swasAs Aunoes aldpiNY  €002/2Z/S0  00'002'Z Aunseg aElspiy'= 9
Buuoq unBne puey g Buuoo - j0leABie AqGoT JeB)  €00Z/BO/L0  P'08L'T au| sjueynsuo) Buysa| sjeusiey o}
Bunges feuo2ucy - oloxd Bullqed anongseyy] £O00Z/EZ/Z0 00P99'LL oujegsifz-ushey O
Buliqes jeluozucy - elosd Buliges aunjonaselul  £00Z/LLZ0  0O'SEQ'SY ou| ensiAz-uake o]
sdooj Buuesy o) pajejes Buliu@  £00Z/0E/90 002892 ¢ Auedwo) Addng ' Sugiug puowel g D

IaBeue josfoid Aq papugng $3910AU)

PaAj90al $30{AI98 | PAINDOR Sjejsajews Jo uoldidsa( aeg unoury aahed
@9{oAY]

Aoijod Buideapjoog Jusing auy Ag pazuoyiny se ‘€002 '8¢ AN uo juawifed 104 posSSad0id SS0I0AUY JO ISiT
ALINOHLINY YN3NY / NOLLNIANGCD ALNNOD LN3IM - SAIdYY ANYUO



£0021180 9 Sppofedojsaueed Aleionpy se saA1es fjuoyiny sy} Yoiym 1o} spunj abeuieloy =
sasuadxa Bunesado 7 uoloNISUCS-UON = O
sasuadxa paje|al UOIONIISUCD JBJUSYD) UOIIUSAUOD = 9

judwAed 10) PaSSad0.d SBOIOAU [BJ0L  8€°266°0.Z°S $

JUNo29Y Bugesad wouy JuswAed 10§ paRIWIGNS SBJI0AU] [10L 8020509 S

JUNOY2Y UOJJONIISUOD WO JudWAed 10) PaRILIGNS SBJI0AU| [BJ0L  0E'ZSSPLLC S

JuUNo29Yy abeulelay Wody Judwihed 10j PERILIGNS SIJIOAU| €301  00'SP6'SEV'L $

saojAleg [edsld A1) Aq payiwigng SadloAU) - [el01-qnS 8020509 $

£002/£0/9 - LE/E - Hewapey) o60] aoe|d SOA2Q  £00Z/8L/L0 SL'Ghv'e
£002/0Z/9 - 1/t - WBuAdoo obo| aoe|d sopea  €002/2L/L0 00°08¢
sbpupes sajuud  €£00Z/1L€/20 S6'LY
£002 AINf - SBOIAISS WESIS BUANY  £002/LE/L0 S vPL's
€002 AINf" - S30IAI9S WeS)S J8jus) puelD  £00Z/LE/LO ocery'e
£00Z AInr - seoiues wes)s yemS  £002/LE/20 000}
£00Z AInf - 18jusD PURIS) IO} SBOIAISS JIOMSS PUB JBIBM  £002/¥Z/L0 9v'168
£00¢ AInp - sebieyo Jomasioiem Jojow uonebuy)  £002/1€/20 91°2s¢
£00Z AINf* - BUBIY IO} SSOIAISS JOMSS PUB IBIBM  £002/1E/20 98'129'L
£00Z AInp - BUBIY JO) SBOIAISS [BOUDBI]  £002/82/.0 28'619'€2
£00Z 8uNnr - 18jJU8D PURID) JOj SBDIAISS [BOUID8F  £002/80/20 £2'821'81
£00Z AInf - MIemAS 10§ SaoIAIeS |B0UI08|13  £002/82/20 £€9°L0€'C

JoBeuey 309foid Aq popjwgng SadjoAu| - [e301-qnS  0€'ZSS'VLL'E §

£00Z AInf - saoiAles Juswabeuew pafold  £002/LE/20 00°08¥°C1
weynsuo) 344  £002/60/20 05°022
€002 ‘22 aunr Buipua pouad - soiydesb |gjuswuoiauz  £002/80/20 62°LLL'T
£002 ‘0¢ Aew Buipus pouad - solydesb [eyuawuonaug  £002/91/90 16°986
£002 ‘sZ Iudy Buipus pouad - soydesb lejuswuosAuz  £002/50/50 9/°6eZ'L
£00¢2 ‘0¢-6Z AInr - Buidwinp jios psjeulweluo)  €002/0€/L0 02°192'
£00Z AInr - sbunesuw ; Buninsuoo wajsAs AUNoas  £002/20/80 000012
£00Z AInp - seoiniss Juswabeuew 108fold  £002/20/80 00°00€'EL
Janses sinpow ‘siqeo ‘Alddns jsmod Oy £002/1.€/20 $9°6/8'02
¢ #wawAed ssaibouid Joj ebeueisy  £002/LE/L0 00°215'021
[eouoald / Auosew / fessusb ~ uononisuo) :z¢ # lwd ssaibold  £002/1€/20 00°25¥'265°€ $

G# meig-juswaaibe sad Junosoe abeurejas uo mesg  £002Z/LE/L0 00'€P6'SEY’L $

d7171 PPN[ g SSOIDION JOWBM
d17 PPN '8 SSOJOION JSWEAA
jodsQ 200

SHOM 211and j0 ide@ Auno) juay
$HOM 2lignd 40 1daq Auno) juey
SHOM 2l|and o ydaq Auno) jusy
Jainseas) Ay spidey puelo
Jainseas] Ay spidey puels
Jainseal) Ay spidey puels
AB1au3 s1awinsuo)

ABiau3 siswinsuo)

ABiau3z siawnsuo)

$391A198 |easid A1) Aq papiwqng Sadl0AU|

H aeq ‘siswwiog

elydispeiiud - ONS

Jv aaissalboig

Jv aAaissalbosg

3Jv aaIssaibold

llypue] AunoH emeno

SISAS Indag / a4 “1ebuifje4 © Ausp
ouj Buginsuo) A1 4 ¢

o8l

JunoddY abeulelay Yv/O OM-HO
BINJUBA JUIOP VY SJUNH - IpJeys3

Jabeuepy 193foud Aq papiugng sadjoAy|

INJUBA JUIOL ¥ JUNH - Jpaeyas]

paAladal sad|AIas | palinboe sjensjew jo uondusssqg ayeq junowy
8910AU|

o9Aegd

Aoljod Buidaaypioog juaung ayj Aq pazuoyiny se ‘€00z ‘1 1snbny uo JuswAed 10} passasold S92I0AU] JO ISi]
ALRIOHLNY YNIYV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVIO

OC0000000O0O0O0O0

(CRGRONONONONONONORENS]



GRPND Item I'V.c.1i.

CENTER

GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

**x%%% PRELIMINARY / UNAUDITED STATEMENTS *% %

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



GRAND CENTER
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

354 354 305 49
477,975 477,975 449,307 28,668
1,500,444 1,500,444 1,297,805 202,639
560,760 560,760 491,054 69,706
2,061,204 2,061,204 1,788,859 272,345
108,564 108,564 203,000 (94,436)
2,169,768 2,169,768 1,991,859 177,809
111,100 111,100 86,064 (25,036)
160,644 160,644 142,850 (17,794)
78,615 78,615 146,847 68,232
408,988 408,988 480,979 71,991
449,937 449,937 447,613 (2,324)
73,997 73,897 57,425 (16,572)
1,085,013 1,095,013 990,049 (104,964)
2,378,294 2,378,294 2,351,831 (26,467)
(208,525) (208,526) (359,972) 151,442
4,528 4,528 62,000 (57,472)
(213,053) (213,054) (421,972) 208,914

June marks the end of the Fiscal Year for the Grand Center and the
very last financial statement presented under the Grand Center name.
June performed better than anticipated due to some additional
spending on decorating and helped the Grand Center end $150,000

ahead of budgeted expectations.




GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating resulits for the current month ending

and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Income

indirect Expenses

Net Income

Less Capital

Net Income after Capital

EVENT INCOME

June June June
Actual Budget FY 2002
9 4 18
12,456 5,100 17,320
$35,052 $18,140 $76,828
21,268 6,546 27,922
1,300 16,913 (18,809)
(227,419) (196,513) (206,012)
($169,799) (5154,914) ($120,071)
YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002
Actual Budget Prior Year
354 305 384
477,975 449,307 490,444
$1,500,444 $1,297,805 1,478,000
560,760 491,054 597,270
108,564 203,000 94,604
(2,378,294) (2,358,134) (2,229,967)
($208,526) ($366,275) ($60,093)
($4,528) ($47,841)
($213,054) ($366,275) ($107,934)

Event income came in above budgeted expectations due to the unbudgeted Quixtar Live

event that was hosted.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above expectations due to the spending associated with the

Quixtar event.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels with the exception of the accrual of the SMG
incentive fee that had been previously only shown in the forecast column of the financial

statement.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

----------------- CURRENT----«===-m===e=mccew= sccescoocececcace Y D--cs-mrmmmmmsmmmomm o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 39,075 16,000 78,341 1,457,082 1,231,630 1,443,971
SERVICES INCOME <4,023> 2,140 <1,513> 43,362 66,175 34,030
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 35,052 18,140 76,828 1,500,444 1,297,805 1,478,000
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 5,834 1,246 11,710 187,276 173,609 204,274
NOVELTY 381 1,500 4,758 21,219 16,700 43,809
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 0 0 908 1,747 0 9,422
ELECTRICAL 1,906 200 594 28,590 26,350 33,402
OTHER ANCILLARY 13,147 3,600 9,952 321,927 274,395 306,363
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 21,268 6,546 27,922 560,760 491,054 597,270
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 56,320 24,686 104,750 2,061,204 1,788,859 2,075,270
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1,300 16,913 <18,809> 108,564 203,000 94,604
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 57,620 41,599 85,941 2,169,768 1,991,859 2,169,874
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,817 7,172 7,186 111,100 86,064 91,169
FINANCE 13,000 11,906 10,062 160,644 142,850 130,592
MARKETING 16,052 12,251 2,401 78,615 146,847 39,964
OPERATIONS 28,427 40,068 37,123 408,988 480,981 506,352
EVENT MANAGEMENT 29,052 37,829 38,687 449,937 453,915 372,650
BOX OFFICE 4,782 4,791 4,811 73,997 57,426 49,917
OVERHEAD 128,289 82,496 105,743 1,095,013 990,051 1,039,319
INDIRECT EXPENSES 227,419 196,513 206,012 2,378,294 2,358,134 2,229,964
NET OPERATING INCOME <169,799> <154,914> <120,071> <208,526> <366,275> <60,090>
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 0 4,528 0 47,841
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 [ 4,528 0 47,841
NET INCOME (LOSS) <169,799> <154,914> <120,071> <213,054> <366,275> <107,931>




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

---------------- CURRENT---~----=vs=-em-n =ce----wv------YEAR TO DATE-----~--------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 0 ] 0 43,876 0 111,923
Stagehands Billed 6,706 11,000 50,875 696,544 752,700 842,217
Security Billed 1,408 3,200 14,872 85,955 111,945 120,089
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 648 1,600 5,328 127,881 135,680 145,527
Box Office Billed 200 200 800 18,050 22,500 25,327
Ticketing Service Billed 115 4,000 7,032 149,559 168,600 187,673
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 2,200 0 5,470
City Police Fire Billed 0 0 992 16,639 7.774 21,313
Traffic Control Billed 141 150 0 11,949 17,520 19,138
EMT Medical Billed 472 300 592 21,927 20,995 23,581
Cleaning Billed 0 0 0 378 0 2,770
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 2,049 0 1,275
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 0 0 0 889
Telephone Billed 500 580 1,270 28,380 12,880 12,849
Damages Billed 0 0 0 193 0 71
Other Production Billed 520 0 1,389 33,258 0 68,153
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 10,708 21,030 83,150 1,238,839 1,250,594 1,588,264
Advertising Expense 0 [} 153 41,358 0 102,918
Stagehand Wages 6,390 10,670 52,168 675,672 730,129 838,971
Security Wages 0 0 0 0 0 7,722
Contracted Security Expense 1,859 3,200 14,872 86,411 111,945 112,382
Ushers & T/T Wages 453 1,120 3,730 89,517 94,977 101,869
Ticket Sellers Wages 123 300 234 20,227 18,370 17,636
Ticket Service Charge Expense 0 1,400 3,601 46,350 51,029 65,703
City Police Fire Expense 0 0 992 16,399 6,474 21,313
Traffic Control Expense 1,053 500 96 30,549 35,335 36,893
EMT Medical Expense 575 300 465 16,792 20,995 17,243
Cleaning Wages 2,854 1,400 7,300 133,387 115,165 159,916
Contracted Cleaning Expense 0 0 0 0 0 2,083
Insurance Expense 737 0 0 2,101 0 899
Allocated Telephone Expense 125 0 0 5,919 0 o]
Production Expense 563 0 1,054 30,794 0 68,687
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 14,731 18,890 84,663 1,195,476 1,184,419 1,554,234
NET SERVICE INCOME <4,023> 2,140 <1,513> 43,362 66,175 34,030




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,306,678
267,027
59,940

1,633,645

78,894
115,070
158,148

541,737
952,849
<213,054>

1,633,645



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

----------------- CURRENT-------==s---cem-n —ecmo-—cumacmccaa--YID-~------omo---emmoo-
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 45,783 46,993 41,424 581,330 563,883 510,949
Part-Time 2,699 11,275 7,966 151,205 135,300 157,300
Wages-Trade 25,945 95,565 69,440 925,735 1,146,780 1,087,688
Auto Allowance 1,521 1,814 0 18,250 21,790 0
Auto Expense 0 0 1,521 0 0 17,900
Taxes & Benefits 22,174 30,109 23,569 366,766 361,297 329,520
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <23,964> <110,156> <74,069> <1,094,617> <1,321,949> <1,255,747>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 74,159 75,600 69,850 948,669 907,101 847,609
Contracted Security 6,347 5,000 7,672 78,371 60,000 57,104
Other Contracted Services 0 187 186 2,135 2,200 2,041
Travel & Entertainment 811 798 1,114 5,306 9,510 6,811
Corporate Travel 0 337 1,975 651 4,000 4,313
Meetings & Conventions 0 1,627 424 9,872 19,370 9,820
Dues & Subscriptions 300 160 0 1,253 1,920 1,525
Employee Training 0 837 0 430 10,000 459
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 0 0 66
Computer Expense 3,371 5,413 2,438 42,972 65,000 32,476
Professional Fees 3,024 1,720 1,661 39,431 20,750 20,414
Marketing & Advertising 5,159 1,091 30 19,556 13,125 10,249
Box Office Expenses <l> 0 30 603 [] 595
Trash Removal 1,317 2,800 349 22,111 33,600 12,644
Equipment Rental 36 375 151 5,635 4,500 3,235
Snow Removal 0 0 0 0 0 169
Exterminating 375 362 375 4,425 4,410 4,808
Cleaning 0 1,250 0 0 15,000 613
Construction Costs 5,658 0 0 11,558 0 1,350
Repairs & Maintenance 4,617 9,007 9,405 73,280 108,150 122,534
Supplies 3,500 13,094 9,403 76,058 157,172 89,864
Bad Debt Expense 10,472 0 [ 10,472 [ o]
Bank Service Charges <1,159> 750 610 7,718 9,000 12,527
Insurance 24,253 8,371 22,962 136,317 100,551 133,912
Other Taxes 0 300 0 0 3,600 [
Printing & Stationary 0 734 [ 238 8,775 1,224
Office Supplies 887 500 20 6,483 6,000 7,447
Postage 2,423 200 444 3,169 2,400 1,582
MARKET RESEARCH 0 0 [] 2 0 0
Parking Expense 1,517 1,500 1,502 18,189 18,000 20,316
Telephone Long Distance 2,341 2,000 2,874 34,436 24,000 30,080
Utilities 23,798 43,000 30,601 562,600 516,000 489,108
Base Fee 18,956 19,500 18,750 227,475 234,000 225,000
Incentive Fee 35,382 0 23,184 35,382 0 80,069
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <125> 0 0 <6,501> 0 0
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 153,260 120,913 136,161 1,429,625 1,451,033 1,382,354
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 227,419 196,513 206,012 2,378,294 2,358,134 2,229,964




SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 20,610 21,390 Closed
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Delay to F/Y 04
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Hockey Glass 20,000 16,750 3,250 Closed
Safety Nets 67,056 (67,056) Closed
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 13,992 4,508 Closed
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 14,140 20,860 Closed
Security Gate System 120,200 79,324 40,876 Closed
Total Arena 368,700 211,872 156,828
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 4,528 7,472 Closed
Total Grand Center 62,000 4,528 57,472
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 216,399 214,301
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,614,378 (208,526) 1,405,852 1,599,391
Benchmark 1,567,050 (359,972) 1,207,078 1,043,839
Excess 47,328 151,446 198,774 555,552
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 227475 227,475 454,950 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,937,784 2,169,768 7,107,552 7,066,354
Benchmark Revenue 4,246,112 1,991,859 6,237,971 5,969,444
Revenue Excess 691,672 177,909 869,581 1,096,910
Incentive Fee ** 138,334 35,582 173,916 224,228
Total SMG Management Fee 365,809 263,057 628,866 674,228

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL
ARENA
VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

**xxk*PRELIMINARY / UNAUDITED STATEMENTS* ¥ %% %

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
150 150 126 24
774,789 774,789 772,050 2,739
1,305,695 1,305,695 1,124,723 180,972
1,548,957 1,548,957 1,302,948 246,009
2,854,652 2,854,652 2,427,671 426,981
2,083,132 2,083,132 1,915,000 168,132
4,937,784 4,937,784 4,342,671 595,113
108,156 108,156 91,525 (16,631)
149,782 149,782 166,900 17,118
197,073 197,073 173,800 (23,273)
1,178,999 1,178,999 1,081,652 (97,347)
115,436 115,436 118,100 2,664
123,606 123,606 116,530 (7.076)
35,787 35,787 36,700 913
1,414,567 1,414,567 1,317,317 (97,250)
3,323,406 3,323,406 3,102,524 (220,882)
1,614,378 1,614,378 1,240,147 374,231
211,872 211,872 368,700 166,828
1,402,506 1,402,506 871,447 531,059

June marks the end of the 7th fiscal year for the Arena, and concludes

a fiscal year consistent with recent performance. As in the past, concerts

continued to be the main economic device for the Arena. The Arena

played host to 23 concerts (15.3% of total events), and contributed over
58% of the total event revenue for the fiscal year.

inéctor of Fiftafice



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2002
Number of Events 5 2 7
Attendance 31,923 11,600 60,235
Direct Event Income $101,186 $36,781 $99,932
Ancillary Income 109,776 27,405 212,988
Other Income 316,063 159,576 323,681
Indirect Expenses (407,258) (258,740) (382,619)
Net Income $119,768 ($34,978) $253,982
YTD YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 150 126 135
Attendance 774,789 772,050 777,499
Direct Event Income $1,305,695 $1,125,019 $1,311,105
Ancillary iIncome 1,548,957 1,302,548 1,600,401
Other Income 2,083,132 1,915,000 1,984,974
Indirect Expenses (3,323,406) (3,104,799) (3,236,972)
Net Income $1,614,379 $1,237,768 $1,659,507
Less Capital ($211,872) ($235,700) ($404,212)
Net Income after Capital $1,402,506 $1,002,068 $1,255,296

EVENT INCOME

Event income performed better than budget due to the hosting of two very successful
concerts, including Fleetwood Mac which became the second one day event to pass the

$1 Million mark in gross ticket sales.

ANCILLARY INCOME

In addition to hosting more than budgeted events, spending for the events hosted was above
average which contributed to the large increase of revenue above expectations.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in above budget due to summer projects in the operations department
and the expensing of the SMG incentive fee that had previously been in the forecast column

only.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

---------------- CURRENT---~-ce=c--=---- —-=====a=nne--YEAR TO DATE-------=-----
ACTUAL BUDGET‘ LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 73,890 0 32,111 408,443 0 323,319
Sponsorship Income 0 0 0 0 0 37,000
Labor Billed 3,780 1,000 2,700 22,972 20,770 22,658
Changeover Setup Billed 16,049 6,000 19,671 155,452 110,550 155,961
Stagehands Billed 104,587 14,000 64,153 623,876 391,500 490, 340
Security Billed 14,671 5,600 30,535 185,538 123,200 216,412
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 14,303 4,950 19,898 153,231 112,700 154,157
Box Office Billed 1,548 400 1,720 12,105 12,750 14,065
Ticketing Service Billed 31,886 7,000 51,501 217,577 169,250 263,057
City Police Fire Billed 1,288 336 1,960 18,935 9,744 14,304
EMT Medical Billed 1,450 400 3,763 28,717 9,725 29,898
Production Materials Billed 0 0 0 0 0 205
Cleaning Billed 11,863 4,400 15,566 120,915 109,200 131,240
Insurance Billed 872 0 0 1,327 0 2,592
Group Sales Commissions Billed 1} 0 ‘o 5,565 1} 3,171
Telephone Billed 2,300 450 3,145 33,850 21,085 27,860
Equipment Rental Billed 0 0 0 770 0 0
Damages Billed 0 o] 0 150 0 0
Other Production Billed 125,932 4,000 41,164 515,726 181,250 327,884
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 404,421 48,536 287,886 2,505,149 1,271,724 2,214,122
Advertising Expense 75,463 0 32,111 389,569 0 352,157
Sponsorship Expenses 0 ] 0 0 0 2,800
Labor Wages 3,213 851 2,295 19,526 18,331 19,259
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 18,013 5,455 29,671 301,452 228,922 291,666
Stagehand Wages 100,763 13,677 61,046 644,383 439,421 512,135
Contracted Security Expense 14,964 4,480 18,894 301,526 192,310 286,064
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 5,067 3,960 31,986 319,733 266,960 284,738
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,316 0 1,462 10,290 0 11,679
Ticket Service Charge Expense 27,586 7,000 72,607 193,098 194,000 260,619
City Police Fire Expense 1,100 336 1,960 19,523 12,494 12,904
EMT Medical Expense 1,033 347 <712> 35,434 22,920 46,699
Contracted Cleaning Expense 19,654 4,000 37,968 338,784 308,779 312,852
Insurance Expense 872 0 0 13,337 0 9,219
Allocated Telephone Expense 767 149 975 10,288 5,318 7,045
Production Expense 130,853 4,000 42,002 516,430 181,030 390,59
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 400,662 44,255 332,264 3,113,371 1,870,485 2,800,426

NET SERVICE INCOME 3,759 4,281 <44,379> <608,222> <598,761> <586,305>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

----------------- CURRENT- - - —=======rmm=m==== ws=memoooooooo o o YTD--m-=-=ommmm-mmmmom -
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 97,428 32,500 144,311 1,913,917 1,723,780 1,897,410
SERVICES INCOME 3,759 4,281 <44,379> <608,222> <598,761> <586, 305>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 101,186 36,781 99,932 1,305,695 1,125,019 1,311,105
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 92,520 18,375 156,513 1,261,753 1,029,328 1,251,600
NOVELTY 17,256 9,030 52,343 236,030 230,840 301,583
ELECTRICAL 0 0 0 1,450 0 0
OTHER ANCILLARY 0 0 4,132 49,724 42,380 47,217
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 109,776 27,405 212,988 1,548,957 1,302,548 1,600,401
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 210,962 64,186 312,920 2,854,652 2,427,567 2,911,506
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 316,063 159,576 323,681 2,083,132 1,915,000 1,984,974
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 527,026 223,762 636,601 4,937,784 4,342,567 4,896,480
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,710 7,639 9,100 108,156 91,525 91, 921
FINANCE 15,385 13,912 11,832 149,782 166,900 160, 617
MARKETING 11,322 14,621 13,797 197,073 176,075 187,474
LUXURY SEATING 6,327 9,720 7,685 123,606 116,530 104,010
OPERATIONS 110,915 90,167 117,436 1,178,999 1,081,652 1,126,699
BOX OFFICE 4,491 9,838 9,186 115,436 118,100 113,993
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,139 3,062 <733> 35,787 36,700 31,672
OVERHEAD 246,969 109,781 214,317 1,414,567 1,317,317 1,420,586
INDIRECT EXPENSES 407,258 258,740 382,619 3,323,406 3,104,799 3,236,972
NET OPERATING INCOME 119,768 <34,978> 253, 982 1,614,378 1,237,768 1,659,508
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 8,601 0 199, 997 211,872 0 404,212
OTHER EXPENSES 8,601 0 199,997 211,872 0 404,212
NET INCOME (LOSS) 111,167 <34,978> 53,985 1,402,506 1,237,768 1,255,296

sSsso===mzssac ==




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

3,902,983
609,004
108,223

4,620,210

162,517
476,247
684,805
1,492,354

<2,040,841>
618,520
1,824,109
1,402,500



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/03

----------------- CURRENT---=---=ccccmeemn —ocmsmemmmemmcm e e YTDmmmmmm oo mmmmmmeeee
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 51,510 47,849 41,291 584,588 574,100 529,027
Part-Time 1,948 2,857 4,389 75,669 34,775 74,559
Wages-Trade 107,831 75,286 80,047 928,931 903,421 804,137
Auto Allowance 777 0 0 5,440 0 0
Auto Expense 0 815 777 3,885 9,725 9,079
Taxes & Benefits 38,109 31,357 27,237 383,908 376,361 297,307
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <110,194> <71,652> <74,558> <855,196> <860,000> <660,443>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 89,980 86,512 79,182 1,127,226 1,038,382 1,053,666
Contracted Security 27,635 17,087 18,117 224,339 205,000 198,117
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,163 0 25,176 26,000 24,370
Other Contracted Services 384 300 628 3,937 3,600 3,977
Travel & Entertainment 1,339 438 383 9,926 5,300 10,319
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 3,395 7,500 1,884
Meetings & Conventions 0 1,087 3,275 6,346 13,000 11,706
Dues & Subscriptions 1] 112 42 3,859 1,300 3,125
Employee Training <125> 1,000 32 1,339 12,000 2,533
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 62 0 0
Computer Expense 7,619 5,413 7,543 54,918 65,000 88,501
Professional Fees 4,448 2,163 4,457 30,191 26, 000 32,851
Marketing & Advertising 946 8,250 6,460 107,891 99, 000 93,068
Box Office Expenses <2,591> 0 37 <2,795> 0 1,542
Small Equipment 462 0 0 3,560 0 1,687
Trash Removal 1,375 1,250 1,744 21,239 15, 000 17,605
Equipment Rental 1,345 1,300 3,071 17,688 15,600 18,934
Landscaping 0 288 [] 0 3,500 10,257
Exterminating 0 337 495 2,723 4,000 2,970
Cleaning 0 450 0 8,739 5,400 2,810
Safety Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 248
Repairs & Maintenance 13,027 10,674 39,668 129,205 128, 000 119,741
Supplies 29,744 15,099 13,978 200,347 181,100 213,851
Bad Debt Expense 0 0 6,717 0 0 6,717
Bank Service Charges 592 1,000 731 9,275 12,000 12,992
Insurance 13,825 11,980 34,950 150,212 143,617 150,500
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 69 0 0
Other Taxes 0 300 [4 0 3,600 69
Printing & Stationary 5,248 1,913 288 10,892 23,000 5,663
Office Supplies 2,149 1,000 1,688 14,711 12,000 17,211
Postage 237 1,000 1,309 10,691 12, 000 8,201
Parking Expense 255 1,588 1,793 20,093 19,100 19,897
Telephone Long Distance 3,194 4,587 7,376 50,840 55,000 52,613
Utilities 49,435 64,574 32,915 751,183 774, 800 711,425
Base Fee 18,956 19,500 18,750 227,475 234, 000 225,000
Incentive Fee 138,344 0 99,159 138,344 [ 144,159
Amortization [] 0 0 [ 0 5,737
Common Area Expense <1,897> <2,875> <l,164> <28,836> <34,500> <29,901>
Less: RAllocated/Reimbursement <767> <375> <975> <10,854> <4,500> <7,045>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 317,278 172,228 303,466 2,196,180 2,066,417 2,183,334
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 407,258 258,740 382,648 3,323,406 3,104,799 3,237,000

cmmmmm=s m== == == == ==== ==f}=========



SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 20,610 21,390 Closed
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Delay to F/Y 04
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Hockey Glass 20,000 16,750 3,250 Closed
Safety Nets 67,056 (67,056) Closed
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 13,992 4,508 Closed
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 14,140 20,860 Closed
Security Gate System 120,200 79,324 40,876 Closed
Total Arena 368,700 211,872 156,828
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 4,528 7,472 Closed
Total Grand Center 62,000 4,528 57,472
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 216,399 214,301
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,614,378 (208,526) 1,405,852 1,599,391
Benchmark 1,567,050 (359,972) 1,207,078 1,043,839
Excess 47,328 151,446 198,774 555,552
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 227,475 227,475 454,950 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,937,784 2,169,768 7,107,552 7,066,354
Benchmark Revenue 4,246,112 1,991,859 6,237,971 5,969,444
Revenue Excess 691,672 177,909 869,581 1,096,910
Incentive Fee ** 138,334 35,582 173,916 224,228
Total SMG Management Fee 365,809 263,057 628,866 674,228

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.ii.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 3 289 292 292 -
ATTENDANCE 940 556,135 557,075 557,075 -
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 4,108 1,402,666 1,406,774 1,406,774 -
ANCILLARY REVENUE 3,399 788,785 792,184 792,184 -
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 7,507 2,191,451 2,198,958 2,198,958 -
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1,563 180,437 182,000 182,000 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 9,070 2,371,888 2,380,958 2,380,958 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,543 102,665 112,208 112,208 -
FINANCE 14,499 184,212 198,711 198,711 -
MARKETING 2,325 74,114 76,439 76,439 -
OPERATIONS 23,204 776,143 799,347 799,347 -
EVENT SERVICES 28,528 719,732 748,260 748,260 -
BOX OFFICE 3,875 77,769 81,644 81,644 -
SALES 9,354 123,834 133,188 133,188 -
OVERHEAD 64,245 1,765,339 1,829,584 1,829,584 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 155,573 3,823,808 3,979,381 3,979,385 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (146,503) (1,451,920) (1,598,423) (1,598,427) -
CAPITAL -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (146,503) (1,451,920) (1,598,423) (1,598,427) -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

July begins the first fiscal year for DeVos Place. July met expectations

given the limited space and the closing of the Theater.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 3 1 28
Attendance 940 500 5,400
Direct Event Income $4,108 $1,664 $144,536
Ancillary Income 3,399 803 23,416
Other Income 1,563 15,166 6,152
Indirect Expenses (155,573) (245,301) (142,818)
Net Income ($146,503) ($227,668) $31,286
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 3 1 28
Attendance 940 500 5,400
Direct Event Income $4,108 $1,664 $144,536
Ancillary Income 3,399 803 23,416
Other Income 1,563 15,166 6,152
Indirect Expenses (155,573) (245,301) (142,818)
Net Income ($146,503) ($227,668) $31,286
Less Capital
Net Income after Capital ($146,503) ($227,668) $31,286

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in higher than expected due to hosting an additional small show

for two days during the month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in higher than expected due to concessions revenue when the
budgeted event was not anticipated to have concessions open.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

----------------- CURRENT--~----===s--mcecess —ccemocomeeec—ceaYID----crmmm-o-mmmmmwomo o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 5,225 2,625 148,815 5,225 2,625 148,815
SERVICES INCOME <1,117> <961> <4,280> <1,117> <961> <4,280>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 4,108 1,664 144,536 4,108 1,664 144,536
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 1,868 0 5,592 1,868 0 5,592
ELECTRICAL 0 0 84 0 [ 84
OTHER ANCILLARY 1,530 803 17,740 1,530 803 17,740
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 3,399 803 23,416 3,399 803 23,416
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 7,507 2,467 167,952 7,507 2,467 167,952
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1,563 15,166 6,152 1,563 15,166 6,152
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 9,070 17,633 174,104 9,070 17,633 174,104
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,543 9,352 6,860 9,543 9,352 6,860
FINANCE 14,499 16,559 11,021 14,499 16,559 11,021
MARKETING 2,325 6,370 2,448 2,325 6,370 2,448
OPERATIONS 23,204 62,507 24,719 23,204 62,507 24,719
EVENT MANAGEMENT 28,528 49,534 33,473 28,528 49,534 33,473
BOX OFFICE 3,875 6,802 5,351 3,875 6,802 5,351
SALES 9,354 11,100 0 9,354 11,100 0
OVERHEAD 64,245 83,077 58,947 64,245 83,077 58,947
INDIRECT EXPENSES 155,573 245,301 142,818 155,573 245,301 142,818
NET OPERATING INCOME <146,503> <227,668> 31,287 <146,503> <227,668> 31,287
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <146,503> <227,668> 31,287 <146,503> <227,668> 31,287




Stagehands Billed
Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed

EMT Medical Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Labor Wages

stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Ushers & T/T Wages

Ticket Sellers Wages
Traffic Control Expense
EMT Medical Expense
Cleaning Wages

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

---------------- CURRENT------------=cn== —==a----------YEAR TO DATE----~=-=-=------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
5,001 1,300 10,542 5,001 1,300 10,542

0 0 842 0 0 842

83 0 1,998 83 0 1,998

0 0 950 0 0 950

0 0 495 0 0 495

0 0 2,615 0 0 2,615

2 0 120 2 [ 120
5,086 1,300 17,561 5,086 1,300 17,561
0 1,000 0 0 1,000 0
4,779 1,261 10,188 4,779 1,261 10,188
0 0 842 0 0 842

58 0 1,399 58 0 1,399

0 0 398 0 0 398

0 0 346 0 0 346

[ 0 369 0 0 369
1,178 0 8,262 1,178 [ 8,262
187 0 37 187 0 37
6,203 2,261 21,841 6,203 2,261 21,841
<1,117> <961> <4,280> <1,117> <961> <4,280>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31,2003
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH 1,326,283
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 192,517
PREPAID EXPENSES 97,198
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,615,999
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS «
TOTAL ASSETS 1,615,999
LIABILITY & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 158,849
ACCRUED EXPENSES 142,102
ADVANCED DEPOSITS 163,855
REFUND LIABILITY 7,260
ADVANCED TICKET SALES 8,003
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB. 480,969
FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH .
FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH -
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS (146,503)
AMOUNT DUE CAA 1,281,533
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,135,030

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY 1,615,999



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

----------------- CURRENT-------c-=--murmo= acccmcwcem—cce-—cceYTD----ccr----nmomroo-o-

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 51,387 81,937 43,303 51,387 81,937 43,303
Part-Time 3,183 11,295 4,732 3,183 11,295 4,732
Wages-Trade 18,578 94,699 33,595 18,578 94,699 33,595
Auto Allowance 1,971 0 0 1,971 0o 0
Auto Expense 150 2,271 1,521 150 2,271 1,521
Taxes & Benefits 17,042 46,930 16,812 17,042 46,930 16,812
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <18,032> <115,718> <31,198> <18,032> <115,718> <31,198>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 74,279 121,414 68,764 74,279 121,414 68,764
Contracted Security 4,684 1] 6,092 4,684 0 6,092
Other Contracted Services 0 183 186 0 183 186
Travel & Entertainment 499 1,209 0 499 1,209 [
Corporate Travel 221 833 0 221 833 0
Meetings & Conventions 1,495 2,000 0 1,495 2,000 0
Dues & Subscriptions 0 42 [] 0 42 0
Employee Training 0 833 0 [ 833 0
Computer Expense 2,510 5,417 2,429 2,510 5,417 2,429
Professional Fees 3,568 2,625 1,650 3,568 2,625 1,650
Marketing & Advertising 1,077 2,967 0 1,077 2,967 0
Box Office Expenses 0 0 54 0 0 54
Trash Removal [ 1,000 116 0 1,000 116
Equipment Rental 43 500 153 43 S00 153
Landscaping 0 0 <69> [+] 0 <69>
Exterminating 0 0 375 0 0 375
Construction Costs 3,207 3,200 0 3,207 3,200 0
Repairs & Maintenance 1,111 12,084 6,402 1,111 12,084 6,402
Supplies 5,758 14,667 529 5,758 14,667 529
Bank Service Charges 642 750 590 642 750 590
Insurance 3,690 18,010 3,830 3,690 18,010 3,830
Printing & Stationary 0 625 0 0 625 0
Office Supplies 113 625 896 113 625 896
Postage 10 417 <222> 10 417 <222>
Parking Expense 1,616 2,000 1,321 1,616 2,000 1,321
Telephone Long Distance 2,096 4,375 262 2,096 4,375 262
Utilities 30,000 30,000 30,709 30,000 30,000 30,709
Base Fee 18,956 19,525 18,750 18,956 19,525 18,750
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 81,294 123,887 74,053 81,294 123,887 74,053
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 155,573 245,301 142,818 155,573 245,301 142,818




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 100,000 Open
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 - 185,000
Grand Center
Total Grand Center - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 - 185,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,522  (1,598,423) (104,901) 1,294,951
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (106,436) - (106,436) 88,378

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,741,584 2,378,432 7,120,016 7,107,552
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 406,304 - 406,304 869,581
Incentive Fee ** - - 81,261 173,916
Total SMG Management Fee 234,300 234,300 549,861 628,866

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 1 132 133 133 -
ATTENDANCE 10,945 741,295 752,240 752,240 g
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 64,668 1,170,854 1,235,522 1,235,522 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 31,752 1,559,310 1,591,062 1,591,062 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 96,420 2,730,164 2,826,584 2,826,584 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 142,100 1,772,900 1,915,000 1,915,000 -
TOTAL INCOME 238,520 4,503,064 4,741,584 4,741,584 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 8,703 91,906 100,609 100,609 -
FINANCE 11,868 178,409 190,277 190,277 -
MARKETING 17,930 190,523 208,453 208,453 -
OPERATIONS 66,956 1,110,465 1,177,421 1,177,421 -
BOX OFFICE 7,386 106,977 114,363 114,363 -
LUXURY SEATING 9,860 108,132 117,992 117,992 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 3,798 32,348 36,146 36,146 -
OVERHEAD 84,044 1,248,757 1,332,801 1,332,801 -

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 210,545 3,067,517 3,278,062 3,278,062 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 27,976 1,435,547 1,463,622 1,463,522 -
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT - .
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 27,975 1,435,547 1,463,522 1,463,522 -
Comments:

-~
July starts a new fiscal year for the Arena. The Arena, while starting /VW
slowly with only one event hosted, started with a very successful Gefieral Manager
sold out Cher concert.
f of Fignga—" Y



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH June June June
Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 1 3 4
Attendance 10,945 24,000 19,845
Direct Event Income $64,668 $104,837 $127,399
Ancillary income 31,7562 91,350 96,277
Other Income 142,100 159,584 159,367
Indirect Expenses (210,545) (271,755) (212,996)
Net income $27,975 $84,016 $170,047
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 1 3 4
Attendance 10,945 24,000 19,845
Direct Event Income $64,668 $104,837 $127,399
Ancillary Income 31,752 91,350 96,277
Other Income 142,100 159,584 159,367
Indirect Expenses (210,545) (271,755) (212,996)
Net Income $27,975 $84,016 $170,046
Less Capital
Net Income after Capital $27,975 $84,016 $170,047

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in below expected levels for the month as the Arena was expected
to host three concerts during the month. However, the Cher concert that was hosted was
sold out and a very successful start to the new year.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below expected levels for the month due to less events hosted.
The spending on the Cher concert was consistent with the 2004 budget for a concert.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in below expected levels for the month.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

----------------- Fai0):1:3 -1 S e 4 1 ST
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 58,187 93,000 125,300 58,187 93,000 125,300
SERVICES INCOME 6,480 - 11,837 2,099 6,480 11,837 2,099
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 64,668 104,837 127,399 64,668 104,837 127,399
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 23,114 66,150 60,351 23,114 66,150 60,351
NOVELTY 8,638 25,200 34,386 8,638 25,200 34,386
OTHER ANCILLARY 0 0 1,540 0 0 1,540
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 31,752 91,350 96,277 31,752 91,350 96,277
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 96,420 196,187 223,675 96,420 196,187 223,675
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 142,100 159,584 159,367 142,100 159,584 159,367
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 238,520 355,771 383,042 238,520 355,771 383,042
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 8,703 8,258 5,392 8,703 8,258 5,392
FINANCE 11,868 15,732 11,958 11,868 15,732 11,958
MARKETING 17,930 17,456 11,862 17,930 17,456 11,862
LUXURY SEATING 9,860 9,832 6,812 9,860 9,832 6,812
OPERATIONS 66,956 98,117 74,727 66,956 98,117 74,727
BOX OFFICE 7,386 8,281 6,499 7,386 8,281 6,499
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 3,798 3,013 3,795 3,798 3,013 3,795
OVERHEAD 84,044 111,066 91,951 84,044 111,066 91,951
INDIRECT EXPENSES 210,545 271,755 212,996 210,545 271,755 212,996
NET OPERATING INCOME 27,975 84,016 170,047 27,975 84,016 170,047
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 27,975 84,016 170,047 27,975 84,016 170,047




Advertising Billed
Labor Billed

Changeover Setup Billed
Stagehands Billed
Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
City Police Fire Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Cleaning Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense

Labor Wages

Contracted Changeover Setup Expense
Stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense
Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense

EMT Medical Expense

Contracted Cleaning Expense
Allocated Telephone Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

VAN ANDEL ARENA

STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME

PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

---------------- CURRENT--==-====cne-c-c -=c-=mcm===n--YEAR TO DATE------------=
ACTUAL BUDGET  LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET  LAST YEAR
19,797 0 40,786 19,797 0 40,786
540 1,620 1,672 540 1,620 1,672
3,280 9,900 13,538 3,280 9,900 13,538
15,194 42,000 82,120 15,194 42,000 82,120
7,033 18,000 21,754 7,033 18,000 21,754
3,922 10,500 9,385 3,922 10,500 9,385
387 1,200 1,290 387 1,200 1,290
16,046 24,000 22,972 16,046 24,000 22,972
280 1,008 1,456 280 1,008 1,456
600 1,800 3,400 600 1,800 3,400
3,262 10,800 9,946 3,262 10,800 9,946
1,300 2,400 4,745 1,300 2,400 4,745
10,457 12,000 48,088 10,457 12,000 48,088
82,097 135,228 261,151 82,097 135,228 261,151
20,685 0 38,229 20,685 0 38,229
459 1,377 1,421 459 1,377 1,421
2,834 9,000 22,098 2,834 9,000 22,098
14,568 41,031 80,529 14,568 41,031 80,529
5,993 14,400 13,815 5,993 14,400 13,815
3,555 8,400 15,088 3,555 8,400 15,088
329 0 1,097 329 0 1,097
12,759 24,000 18,758 12,759 24,000 18,758
280 1,008 1,456 280 1,008 1,456
391 1,565 2,550 391 1,565 2,550
3,073 9,818 16,344 3,073 9,818 16,344
433 792 1,508 433 792 1,508
10,257 12,000 46,159 10,257 12,000 46,159
75,617 123,391 259,052 75,617 123,391 259,052
6,480 11,837 2,099 6,480 11,837 2,099




VAN ANDEL ARENA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2003

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

4,612,647
1,934,055
130,654

6,677,355

6,677,356

598,660
504,959
2,303,187
1,383,848

4,790,654

54,440
27,975
1,804,287

1,886,702

6,677,356




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/03

----------------- CURRENT--=----===--=--~-- =smmmmmccomor—ameeeYTDmmmmmmm oo oo mmo oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 46,736 43,608 43,261 46,736 43,608 43,261
Part-Time 1,529 2,918 2,826 1,529 2,918 2,826
Wages-Trade 36,016 78,186 94,143 36,016 78,186 94,143
Auto Allowance 577 0 0 577 0 0
Auto Expense 300 835 777 300 835 777
Taxes & Benefits 22,400 33,656 30,109 22,400 33,656 30,109
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <26,640> <62,917> <93,696> <26,640> <62,917> <93,696>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 80,917 96,286 77,421 80,917 96,286 77,421
Contracted Security 20,132 19,583 18,294 20,132 19,583 18,294
Contracted Cleaning 2,302 2,167 4,196 2,302 2,167 4,196
Other Contracted Services 314 300 344 314 300 344
Travel & Entertainment 1,086 325 367 1,086 325 367
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 625 0
Meetings & Conventions 0 625 0 0 625 0
Dues & Subscriptions 1,048 208 [ 1,048 208 0
Employee Training 39 1,000 0 39 1,000 0
Computer Expense 1,947 5,417 1,839 1,947 5,417 1,839
Professional Fees 2,000 2,167 1,500 2,000 2,167 1,500
Marketing & Advertising 11,166 8,250 3,443 11,166 8,250 3,443
Box Office Expenses <11> 0 <2> <1l> 0 <2>
Trash Removal 9298 1,250 1,603 998 1,250 1,603
Equipment Rental 2,199 1,300 1,185 2,199 1,300 1,185
Landscaping 0 292 0 0 292 ]
Exterminating 0 333 248 [ 333 248
Cleaning 0 450 0 0 450 0
Repairs & Maintenance 1,491 10,666 5,415 1,491 10,666 5,418
Supplies 2,977 15,091 8,617 2,977 15,091 8,617
Bank Service Charges 431 1,000 688 431 1,000 688
Insurance 4,148 13,699 9,362 4,148 13,699 9,362
Printing & Stationary [ 1,917 0 0 1,917 0
Office Supplies 162 1,000 0 162 1,000 0
Postage 201 1,000 169 201 1,000 169
Parking Expense 3,706 1,592 2,348 3,706 1,592 2,348
Telephone Long Distance 1,671 4,583 5,603 1,671 4,583 5,603
Utilities 54,572 64,150 56,728 54,572 64,150 56,728
Base Fee 18,956 19,525 18,500 18,956 19,525 18,500
Common Area Expense <1,471> <2,671> <3,365> <1,471> <2,671> <3,365>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <433> <375> <1,508> <433> <375> <1,508>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 129,628 175,469 135,575 129,628 175,469 135,575
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 210,545 271,755 212,996 210,545 271,755 212,996




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 100,000 Open
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 - 185,000
Grand Center
Total Grand Center - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 - 185,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,522  (1,598,423) (104,901) 1,294,951
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (106,436) - (106,436) 88,378

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,741,584 2,378,432 7,120,016 7,107,552
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 406,304 - 406,304 869,581
Incentive Fee ** - - 81,261 173,916
Total SMG Management Fee 234,300 234,300 549,861 628,866

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.1ii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2003

i BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying preliminary statements of net assets and cash receipts and
disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts of the Grand
Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the twelve months ended June 30, 2003, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include the cash
receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the
Authority.  The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

August 11, 2003
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP

50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
surre 600 F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

M I CHIGAN BusiINESS ADVISORS » CPAS » FINANCIAL SERVICES
49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



-
e —————,———————————— T T T HRREEEEEEE S E nnGnnnnnennnsmsmssssaamasssasasaa—aoaaa——a——

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e e — e ————

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Preliminary Statement of Net Assets

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents - Authority
Cash and Equivalents - Facility
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Contract Rights
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Advance Ticket Sales
Advance Deposits
Deferred Facility Income

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets

Fund Balance

TOTAL NET ASSETS

June 30, 2003

CONSTRUCTION OPERATING TOTAL
$ 18,233,694 1,739,440 $ 19,973,134
- 3,620,013 3,620,013
19,919,269 - 19,919,269
- 1,232,040 1,232,040
- 117,750 117,750
- 5,737 5.737
38,152,963 6,714,980 44,867,943
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
56,229,162 3,507 56,232.669
94,382,125 6,718,487 101,100,612
- 643,033 643,033
- 418,296 418,296
- 1,079,206 1,079,206
- 202,952 202,852
- 441,506 441.506
- 2,784,993 2,784,993
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
38,152,963 3,929,987 42,082,950
$ 94,382,125 §$ 3,933,494 $ 98,315,619

i) BEENE GARTER LLP ==



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Preliminary Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 2,170,975 $ 2,040,841 $ - $ -
Land Lease 107,772 348,471 - -
Interest on investments 34,880 18,829 25,120 11,059
Capitat Replacement Reserve Transfer 184,418 - (184,418) -
Miscellaneous Revenue - 6,007 - -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,498,045 2,414,148 (159,298) 11,059
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 25,635 25,554 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,050 27,749 - -
Legal Services 33,550 28,315 - -
Other Contractual Services 43,000 36,984 - -
Facility Management Fees - 224,228 - -
Meeting Expense 890 662 - -
Supplies 1,350 221 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,137,475 1,343,712 : - -
Electricity 727,000 722,476 - -
Steam 471,000 522,179 - -
Water and Sewer 92,800 72,387 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,290,800 1,317,042 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 380,200 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 50,500 -
Sub-totai Capital Disbursements - - 430,700 -
Employee Wages 52,240 52,000 - -
Employee Benefits 17,530 15,028 - -
Sub-total Payroli Disbursements 69,770 67,028 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,498,045 2,727,782 430,700 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (313,634) § (589,998) §$ 11,059
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 3,000,000 2,418,567 1,236,069 1,817,502
Total Net Assets - End of Year $ 3,000,000 $ 2,104,933 $ 646,071 $ 1,828,561
See Comments See Comments
1and2 1and 2

Comment 1. Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002,

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
CIAA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

See accountants’ report

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Preliminary Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)
From July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003

RECEIPTS
State of Michigan
City / County Bidg Authority Capital Contrib.
Transfer from Operating Fund
Interest on Investments
TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services
Construction Matenal Testing
Construction - GMP Contractor
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements

Insurance - Property / Liability
Legal Services
Owner's Representatives
Other Contractual Services
Sub-total Service Disbursements

Advertising / Promotion / Publicity
Supplies
Postage / Express
Telephone
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Total Net Assets - End of Year

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT

Monroe Ave Relocation

Convention Center Construction

Budget Actual Budget Actual

$ - $ - $ 2,138,974 $ -
3,071,036 14,574 52,381,302 57,662,498
- - 1,000,000 1,000,000
55,000 44 358 698,455 799,786
3,126,036 58,932 56,218,731 59,462,284
1,744,046 - 4,000,000 2,312,503
- - 600,000 289,715
1,133,925 14,560 47,063,549 60,781,420
2,877,971 14,560 51,663,549 63,383,638
- - 53,338 77,660
10,000 202 10,000 7,279
- - 270,870 261,758
238,065 - 4,215,724 702,027
248,065 202 4,549,932 1,048,724

- - 2,500 -

- - 500 -

- - 150 -
- - 2,100 2,040
- - 5,250 2,040
3,126,036 14,762 56,218,731 64,434,401

$ - $ 44,170 $ - $ (4,972,117)

9,206,790 9,206,790 90,103,282 90,103,282
$ 9,206,790 $ 9,250,960 $ 90,103,282 $ 85,131,165

See Comment

See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002.

" BEENE GARTER LLP

See accountants' report



Item IV.c.1ii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

One Month Ended July 31, 2003

i" BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of net assets and cash receipts and
disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts of the Grand
Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the one month ended July 31, 2003, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include the cash
receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the
Authority.  The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority's cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

August 12, 2003
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
SuUITE 600 F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

M I CHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS ™ FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



-
B S e — ]

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents - Authority
Cash and Equivalents - Facility
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Contract Rights
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Advance Ticket Sales
Advance Deposits
Deferred Facility Income

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets

Fund Balance

TOTAL NET ASSETS

" BEENE GARTER LLP

Statement of Net Assets

July 31, 2003

CONSTRUCTION OPERATING TOTAL
$ 13,853,918 § 1685419 § 15,539,337
- 3,620,013 3,620,013
19,921,727 - 18,921,727
- 1,232,040 1,232,040
- 117,750 117,750
- 5737 5.737
33,775,645 6,660,959 40,436,604
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
56,229,162 3,507 96,232,669
90,004,807 6,664,466 96,669,273
- 643,033 643,033
- 418,296 418,296
- 1,079,206 1,079,206
- 202,952 202,952
- 441 506 441.506
- 2,784,993 2,784,993
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
33,775,645 3,875,966 37,651,611
$ 90,004,807 $ 3,879,473 $ 93,884,280

See accountants’ report



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2003 to July 31, 2003

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations S 182755 $ - 3 - 5 -
Land Lease 107,000 8,901 - -
Interest on Investments 20,000 876 12,000 514
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 930,402 - (930,402) -
Miscellaneous Revenue 8,000 - - -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,892,967 9,777 (918,402) 514
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 59,245 1,128 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,595 - - -
Legal Services 32,000 6,102 - -
Other Contractual Services 42,000 - - -
Pedestrian Safety 95,000 - - -
Facility Management Fees - - - -
Meeting Expense 890 28 - -
Supplies 1,000 - - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 - - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,263,730 7,257 - -
Electricity 1,031,332 30,631 - -
Steam 831,834 18,194 - -
Water and Sewer 99,300 2,892 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,962,466 51,716 - -
Building Additions and improvements - - 45,000 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 115,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 160,000 -
Employee Wages 53,300 4,000 - -
Employee Benefits 17,366 1,339 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 70,666 5,339 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 3,296,862 64,312 160,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ (403,895) $ (54,535) $ (1,078,402) $ 514
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 3,403,895 2,104,933 1,596,704 1,828,561
Total Net Assets - End of Period $ 3,000,000 $ 2,050,398 $ 518,302 $ 1,829,075
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and?2

Comment 1. Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the Convention / Arena

Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 28, 2003.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center

financial statements prepared by SMG.

" BEENE GARTER LLP

See accountants’ report



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual {Construction)
From July 1, 2003 to July 31, 2003

Convention Center Construction

Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Grand Action $ 32,048,961 3 -
Downtown Development Authority 10,000,000 -
County of Kent 5,000,000 -
City of Grand Rapids - grant proceeds 3,528,884 -
Transfer from Operating Fund 1,000,000 -
Interest on Investments 397,550 35,073
TOTAL RECEIPTS 51,975,395 35,073
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 4,605,255 123,861
Construction Material Testing 583,610 17,786
Construction - GMP Contractor 56,390,602 4,024 684
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements 61,579,467 4,166,332
Insurance - Property / Liability 116,100 116,100
Legal Services 7,000 252
Owner's Representatives 245,000 22,930
Other Contractual Services 1,141,035 106,649
Telephone 2,000 128
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,511,135 246,059
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 63,090,602 4,412,391

Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Total Net Assets - End of Period

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County

$ (11,115,207)

33,271,289

$ (4,377,318)

94,382,125

_$ 22.156,082
See Comment

_S 90,004,807

Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on March 26, 2003.

See accountants’ report

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Item IV.c.iv.

FISCAL SERVICES

County Administration Building
' 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W.
August 5, 2003 Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2221

Phone (616) 336-2517
Mr. Bob White Fax (616) 336-3598
Finance Director
Kent County
300 Monroe NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

RE: Convention/Arena Authority
General Liability Insurance Renewal
Hartford Insurance Policy # 81 SBA KP 8427
Expiration Date: 8-23-03
Policy Limit $10,000,000

Dear Mr. White,

The general liability insurance policy for the Convention/Arena Authority is set to expire
on August 23, 2003. Renewal proposals were requested from the insurance broker,
Arthur J. Gallagher & Company. The broker approached several insurance carriers.
However, only Hartford submitted a renewal proposal.

The renewal proposal from Hartford is basically the same terms and conditions as the
expiring policy. The primary liability limit is $1,000,000 and the endorsed excess liability
limit is $9,000,000. The renewal premium is $3,846 The expiring premium was $3,799.

It is my understanding that the Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee meeting
is scheduled for August 21, 2003.

After the approval to renew is received from the Committee, please let me know so
coverage can be bound before the expiration date of August 23, 2002.

Sincerely,

Phil Van Dyke /é_
Risk Coordinator

336-2519

cc Steve Duarte Susan Waddell
Deputy Director of Support Services Convention/Arena Authority

Robert J. White

Director



Item V

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT RELATED
TO DEVOS PLACE WITH THE COUNTY OF KENT IN CONNECTION
WITH THE ISSUANCE BY THE CITY-COUNTY BUILDING
AUTHORITY OF ADDITIONAL BONDS TO FINANCE A PORTION OF
THE COSTS OF IMPROVEMENT, EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF
DEVOS PLACE

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember
moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
owns and operates a convention/performing arts/entertainment facility known as DeVos Place
(the "Facility"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA previously determined to undertake the extensive improvement,
expansion and renovation of the Facility, including the demolition of existing structures; the
construction of infrastructure improvements including the relocation of utilities in Monroe
Avenue, N.W., Michigan Street, N.W., Lyon Street, N.-W., and Pearl Street, N.W.; the renovation
and improvement of approximately 150,000 square feet of existing space; the addition of
approximately 850,000 square feet of new space; the construction of an approximately 700 space
below grade parking facility; the improvement of Riverfront Promenade and Lyon Square; the
acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment; and related and appurtenant
improvements generally located and to be located south of Michigan Street, N.-W., west of
Monroe Avenue, N.W., north of Lyon Street, N.W., and east of the Grand River within the City
(the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA requested both the County of Kent (the "County") and the City-
County Building Authority (the "Building Authority") to assist in the financing of a portion of
the cost of the Project through the issuance of building authority bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of $84,578,903.75 entitled "Building Authority Bonds, Series 2001 (DeVos Place
Project)" (the "Bonds"), which bonds were issued pursuant to Act 31 of the Public Acts of
Michigan of 1948 (First Extra Session), as amended, MCL 123.951 et seq. ("Act 31") on
December 13, 2001; and

WHEREAS, while the Bonds (or any other bonds issued by the Building Authority for
the Project) are outstanding, Act 31 requires the legal title to the Project be in the name of the
Building Authority; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the County entered into a
Contract of Lease dated as of December 1, 2001 (the "Lease Contract"), with the Building
Authority agreeing to lease the Project until all of the Bonds have been retired or defeased and to
make rental payments equal to the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; and

GRAPIDS 60872-6 139652



WHEREAS, during the time the Bonds are outstanding, the County agreed to sublease
the Project to the CAA pursuant to the terms of a Sublease Agreement (the "Sublease") pursuant
to which the CAA is responsible for the operation, maintenance and administration of the
Project; and

WHEREAS, the CAA, in collaboration with the County, the City of Grand Rapids and
the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Grand Rapids has requested the Building
Authority to issue additional bonds in the principal amount of $10,000,000 (the "Series 2003
Bonds") to complete the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Building Authority has agreed to issue the Series 2003 Bonds pursuant
to Act 31; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the County and
the Building Authority have entered into a supplement to the Lease Contract (the "First
Supplement to Lease Contract") providing for the payment of additional rentals to cover the cost
of repayment of the Series 2003 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds and the execution
of the First Supplement to Lease Contract, it is necessary for the County and CAA to enter into
an amendment to the Sublease (the "First Amendment to Sublease").

RESOLVED:

1. That the First Amendment to Sublease substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A is hereby approved and any two officers of the CAA are hereby authorized and
directed to execute such First Amendment to Sublease for and on behalf of the CAA in
substantially the form approved with such changes as may be necessary or desirable, not
materially adverse to the CAA and as approved by its legal counsel.

2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the
same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

Dated: August 27,2003

Susan Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 60872-6 139652



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA™), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on August 27, 2003, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan 0f 1976, as amended.

Dated: August 27, 2003

Susan Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 60872-6 139652



EXHIBIT A
FIRST AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT (the "First
Amendment") made as of the ___ day of , 2003, by and between the COUNTY
OF KENT, Michigan (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), a Michigan county organized and
existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan, and the GRAND RAPIDS -
KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as the
"CAA"), a Michigan statutory authority established pursuant to Act 203 of the Public Acts of
Michigan of 1999, MCL 141.1401, et seq. ("Act 203").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County and the City of Grand Rapids (the "City") established the CAA
pursuant to Act 203 for the purpose in part of the CAA owning and operating a
convention/performing arts/entertainment facility known as DeVos Place (the "Facility"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA previously determined to undertake the extensive improvement,
expansion and renovation of the Facility, including the demolition of existing structures; the
construction of infrastructure improvements, including the relocation of utilities in Monroe
Avenue, N.W., Michigan Street, N.W., Lyon Street, N.-W., and Pearl Street, N.W.; the renovation
and improvement of approximately 150,000 square feet of existing space; the addition of
approximately 850,000 square feet of new space; the construction of an approximately 700 space
below grade parking facility; the improvement of Riverfront Promenade and Lyon Square; the
acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment; and related and appurtenant
improvements generally located and to be located south of Michigan Street, N.W., west of
Monroe Avenue, N.W., north of Lyon Street, N.W., and east of the Grand River within the City
(the "Project"), for use for public purposes; and

WHEREAS, the County and the City have incorporated the City-County Building
Authority (the "Building Authority") pursuant to Act 31 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1948
(First Extra Session), as amended, MCL 123.951, et seq. ("Act 31"), for the purposes set forth in
Act 31; and

WHEREAS, the CAA requested the Building Authority assist in the financing of a
portion of the cost of the Project through issuance of building authority bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $84,578,903.75 entitled "Building Authority Bonds, Series 2001 (DeVos
Place Project)" (the "Bonds"), which Bonds were issued pursuant to Act 31 on December 13,
2001; and

WHEREAS, while the Bonds (or any other bonds issued by the Building Authority for
the Project) are outstanding, Act 31 requires the legal title to the Project be in the name of the
Building Authority; and

GRAPIDS 60872-6 139652



WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the County entered into a
Contract of Lease dated as of December 1, 2001 (the "Lease Contract"), with the Building
Authority pursuant to which the County agreed to lease the Project from the Building Authority
until all of the Bonds have been retired or defeased and make rental payments to the Building
Authority equal to the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; and

WHEREAS, during the time the Bonds are outstanding, the County agreed to sublease
the Project to the CAA pursuant to the terms of a Sublease Agreement (the "Sublease") pursuant
to which the CAA is responsible for the operation, maintenance and administration of the
Project; and

WHEREAS, the CAA, in collaboration with the County, the City and the Downtown
Development Authority of the City of Grand Rapids has requested the Building Authority to
issue additional bonds in the principal amount of $10,000,000 (the "Series 2003 Bonds") needed
to complete the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Building Authority has agreed to issue the Series 2003 Bonds pursuant
to Act 31; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the County and
the Building Authority have entered into a supplement to the Lease Contract (the "First
Supplement to Lease Contract") providing for the payment of additional rentals to cover the cost
of repayment of the Series 2003 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds and the execution
of the First Supplement to Lease Contract, it is necessary for the County and CAA to enter into
this First Amendment to the Sublease.

NOVW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL
UNDERTAKINGS AND AGREEMENTS HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, IT IS AGREED
BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS:

1. The County agrees to be responsible for the payment of principal of and interest
on the Series 2003 Bonds when due through the payment to the Building Authority of rental
payments as required by the First Supplement to Lease Contract.

2. Project costs as identified in the Lease Contract shall be paid from proceeds of the
Bonds and the Series 2003 Bonds (including available investment income) and other funds to be
provided by or through the CAA. If there are not sufficient funds to complete the Project as
designed, the CAA shall make the determination as to whether, and to what extent, the Project
should be modified.

3. The County leases the Facility including the Project to the CAA for a term
commencing on the effective date of the Lease Contract and ending on the later of the final
maturity or legal defeasance of the Bonds or the Series 2003 Bonds, or such earlier date of
termination of the Lease Contract and First Supplement to Lease Contract as provided therein.

A-2

GRAPIDS 60872-4 116177



When all of the Bonds and the Series 2003 Bonds have been retired or legally defeased, the
Building Authority is required pursuant to the Lease Contract and First Supplement to Lease
Contract to convey, and the County shall, pursuant to the Sublease and this First Amendment,
simultaneously convey to the CAA all of the right, title and interest in the Facility including the
Project and any lands, air space, easements or rights-of-way appertaining thereto. Upon such
conveyance, the Sublease and this First Amendment and the leasehold term shall terminate and
neither the Building Authority nor the County shall have any further interest in, or obligation
with respect to the Facility including the Project.

4, The CAA hereby agrees to pay all expenses of the Building Authority related to
the Series 2003 Bonds including expenses incidential to the issuance and payment of the Series
2003 Bonds to the extent such expenses are not paid from the proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds.

5. The CAA shall not make or permit to be made any permanent alterations to the
Project that will affect adversely the security for the Series 2003 Bonds or the payment of
principal of or interest on such Series 2003 Bonds.

6. The CAA covenants and agrees that it will not do or permit to be done any act,
and that this First Amendment will not be amended in any manner, which would impair the
security of the Bonds or the Series 2003 Bonds or the rights of the holders thereof. The CAA
further agrees to comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds in order that
interest on the Series 2003 Bonds be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes.

7. The term of the Sublease and this First Amendment shall continue until the Series
2003 Bonds are paid in full or legally defeased, the Lease Contract and First Supplement to
Lease Contract have been terminated and full title to the Facility including the Project has been
conveyed to the CAA.

8. This First Amendment shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the
respective parties hereto and their successors and assigns; provided, however, that no assignment
shall be made in violation of the terms hereof nor shall any assignment be made which would
impair the security of the Bonds or the Series 2003 Bonds or the rights of the holders thereof.

9. This First Amendment shall be construed in all respects in accordance with the
laws of the State of Michigan.

10. In the event any provision of this First Amendment shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any provision hereof.

11.  The waiver by either party hereto or a breach or violation of any provision of this
First Amendment shall not be a waiver of any subsequent breach in the same or any other
provision of this First Amendment.

GRAPIDS 60872-4 116177



12.  This First Amendment shall be enforceable only by the parties hereto and their
successors in interest by virtue of an assignment which is not prohibited under the terms of the
Sublease or this First Amendment and no other person shall have the right to enforce any
provision contained herein.

13.  Except to the extent modified or amended by this First Amendment, the Sublease
is in all respects ratified and confirmed as applicable to the Series 2003 Bonds. In the event of a
conflict between the Sublease and this First Amendment as it relates to the Series 2003 Bonds,
the provisions of this First Amendment shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY OF KENT, by its Board of Commissioners,
and the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, by its
Board of Directors, each have caused this First Amendment to be signed in its name, for and on
its behalf, by its duly authorized officers, as of the day and year first above written.

COUNTY OF KENT

By:

David J. Morren, Chairperson
Board of Commissioners

By:
Mary Hollinrake, County Clerk

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:

John H. Logie, Chairman

By:

Birgit M. Klohs, Secretary

GRAPIDS 60872-4 116177



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item VI
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Mon, Aug 18 | WWE MS Arena 7:00 AM Rigging starts
8:00 AM Load-in begins
2:00 PM Chair set
3:00 PM Pyro test
6:45 PM Doors open
7:45 PM Show begins
9:00 PM Televised portion begins
11:00 PM End of show/Load-out
WWE MW | Banquet C/D 5:00 AM Set-up
6A-11P Crew catering
Tue, Aug 19 | Available
Wed, Aug 20 | SMG MW | Banquet A 8:00 AM Set-up
9:45A-12P Pepsi Jam and the Van Press Conf
Thur, Aug 21 | Available
Fri, Aug 22 Available
Sat, Aug 23 Available
Sun, Aug 24 | Available
Mon, Aug 25 | Available
Tue, Aug 26 Available
Wed, Aug 27 | DP Fox MW | Banquet All 6P-8:30P Banquet
Thur, Aug 28 | Available
Fri, Aug 29 ZZ Top AH Arena 8:00 PM Performance
ZZ Top MW | Banquet C/D 2:00 AM Set-up
5A-11P Crew catering
Sat, Aug 30 Available
Sun, Aug 31 | Available
Mon, Sep 1 Available
Tue, Sep 2 Available
Wed, Sep 3 Neil Young MS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Sep 4 Grand Rapids Sports Hall of Fame | MW | Banquet All 2:00 PM Set-up
5P-10P Induction Ceremony
Fri, Sep 5 Available
Sat, Sep 6 Available
Sun, Sep 7 Available
Mon, Sep 8 Available
Tue, Sep 9 Available
Wed, Sep 10 | Available
Thur, Sep 11 | Available
Fri, Sep 12 Available
Sat, Sep 13 Metropolitan Foundation MS Arena 6:00 PM Black Tie Dinner
Sun, Sep 14 Available
Mon, Sep 15 | Available
Tue, Sep 16 Available
Wed, Sep 17 | Available
Thur, Sep 18 | DP Fox MS Arena 7:30 PM Red/White game
Fri, Sep 19 Team of Destiny AH Arena 8A-5P Move-in
Sat, Sep 20 Team of Destiny AH Arena 8A-11P Show
Sun, Sep 21 Team of Destiny AH Arena 8A-5P Show/Move-out




1N0 JAON TYIININ dOE: 11-d0€:01
FONVNIOIIAd dO£:01-d8
DNILVES OL S400d do€:L
Lvaadn dog:L-dL
1S A€807 0L S400d dL /Ad [ TVDISSVID — 0S¥D
110 IAON d01-d9
ONILIIN d9-V6
NOILVY1SIDTH dOES-VL
ar NI JAOW V9 /HO €/1 £007 MOHS AVO¥ ALISYIAINN AVEE €1.1d4S "LVS
ar NI SAOW NOON-VOI /HO €/1 £007 MOHSAVOY ALISYIAINN AvVEd
FONVAIOIITd d0E:01-d8
ONILVES OL S400d dog:L
Lvadadn dog:L-dL
1S Ag€01 OL $400d dL /AQ 1TVOISSYID — 0S¥ 71 144S T
TVSYvaHTd d01-d0€'L
1S DONVH JIN dL-dv /AQ 1 IVIISSVID — OSUD 11 1ddS SYNHL
TVSHvaHTY 301-d0E°L
18 TVSIVIHTY do-dog:€ /Ad [TVIISSYID — 0S¥ 01 1d3S ‘qam
TVSAvAHTI d01-d0E'L
AVSYVIHTYA d9-dOg€
1S NI SACW d1-v8 /Ad 1 TVIISSVID — OS¥D 6 1ddS 'SANL
1S SNOLLIANY ds-V6 /Ad SNOILIINY — OSYO g 1ddS 'NOW
L 143S 'NOS
1S SNOLLIdNY ds-v6 /AQ SNOLLIANY — 0S¥D 9 1d3S "LVS
1S SNOLLIANY ds-v6 /Ad SNOLLIANV — 0S¥D $ 143S T
t 1d9S 'SUNHL
€ 1LddS ‘aam
71d43S 'sAnlL
1 1d3S ‘NOW
1£ D0V 'NOS
0 5NV 'LVS
675NV T
87 DNV "SYNHL
L7901V ‘aIm
97 5OV "SENL
$7 5NV ‘NOW
vZ OOV ‘NS
1N0 FAON AIN-dOE01
WVID0Nd ol dog:01-d8
SY00d dL
WVHDO0¥d i do-dv
NHdO S300d de
DONILIIWN TIVINS de-dz
d11-V6 - NIJO ITVMANS | AW NI JAOW dT-v6 /HO FONTITINOD AVMINY QIVMOH £2 5NV "LVS
77DV Tid
12 5NV 'SYNHL
0z DAV 'dIM
61 DNV "SANL
NOLLDNYLSNOD/SNOLLVYEJO od NOLLONNA ANIL WOOY LINIAT ALVa

€007 IVAA — ATIHdM FOVT1d SOA Hd




SONVINRNOTIAd d0€:01-d8
ONILVES OL $300d dog:L
A€€071 0L $300d dL
JONVAEOYAd d0€:7-dz
ONILVES OL $400d dog:1
1S A8€01 0L $900d di /Ad SSTYIXT LHOITMVILS LT L3S "LVS
SONVINIOTIAd d0E701-d8
ONILVES OL $300d dogiL
1s AS€0T Ol S400d dL /Ad SSTYdXE LHOITIVIS 9 14dS T¥d
SONVAOA¥Ad d0T-dO€°L
ONILVS OL $¥00d de
Ag€07 0L $900d d0£9
JONVANOLYEd d0g:t-dz
DNILVES OL $400d dog:1
1S A8€01 0l $300d di /Ad SST¥dX3 LHOITIVLS | ST 1d3S SYNHL
SONVINMOTIAd d01-d0E'L
DNILVES OL $¥00d dL
1S A8€0T 0L $300d dog:9 /Ad SSTAdXH LHOITIVLS
INOIAON d01-40€'8
SLISTHX3 dO€'8-d9
dn 19 dS-NOON JONEEANOD
an NI SAOW NOON-VS M9 €12 SYIOVNVIN £007 ADIAUTS SAH vZ 1d3S "aam
FONVNROINEL d401-d0€*L
DNILVES OL $900d de
A€€0T OL $900d do£:9
OgHO O¥Ad dz
@.INOD NI JAOW d9-NOON
1S Q.INOD NI 9AOW NOON-V8 IAG SSTYIXH LHOITIVLS €2 1ddS SANL
TIVO A0M di1-d9
1S NI JAOW ds-vs /Ad SSTYIXT LHOITIVLS 2z 1d9S "NOW
1S |  ONVH-S¥d/dNLS ASNOH di1-d8 /Ad SSTYIXE LHOITAVLS
1N00 IAON dg-ds
SONVAEOL¥Ad ds-de
ONILVS OL S¥00d dog:T
1s A9€0T Ol S400d & /Ad 15d0d ~ OS¥D 17 LdFS ‘NAS
JONVINMOTIEd d01-d8
DNJLVES OL $400d dog:L
1S A€€07 OL S¥00d dL /Ad 15d0d - OS¥D
1N0 9AON d5-d0ET
WY¥D0¥d d0g:z-dl
HONN'T d1-NOON
VIDO¥d NOON-V0E:8
1SVDIvayd VOE:8-VOE:L MOHSIAVYIL
ar NI SAOW VOE:LV9 M0 €17 INIA "DNI ‘SNOS % WVHVEY 'S 0 LddS "LVS
SONVAEOINAd d01-d8
ONLLVES OL $300d dog:L
1S A8€07 0L SY00d dL /AQ 15d0d — OS¥D 61 LdSS Tdd
IVSIVIHTY d0T-dL
1S NI AOW d1-v6 /Ad 1540d ~ OS¥D 81 LdHS SYNHL
L1 1d9S "qam
91.1dds '$aNL
$1.1d3S ‘NOW
vl LdgS 'NNS
NOLLOMRLLSNOOD/SNOLLYYEJO o4 NOLLONNA INLL WO0Y INTIAT aLva

€00C IVAA — ATAFdM FOV1d SOA 5Hd




TVSIVIHEI d01-d0¢:L
1S NI SAONW d1-V6 /Ad 11 TVIISSVIO — OSUD 0¢€ 1498 'SdNL
1S TIOLSTI SNOH dZ-vol /Ad SSTAdXT LHOITIVLS
1NO JAON "aIN-dot:6
MOHS d0€:6-d8
YANNIA d8-dL
SY00d d9
IN TVSIVIHTA d9-dv /HD YINNIA F41T NO SND0d 67 1dIS 'NOW
1N0 IAON d0€:01-d0¢:S
HONVINIOIIAd d0g:s-dt
DONILVES OL S¥00d dog-c
1S Ag4907 0L S400d dt /A SSTAdXH LHOITIVLS
4N NI HAOW ds-dl /M9 YINNIQ 41T NO SNJ04 8¢ 1d9S 'NAS
NOILLONYLSNOD/SNOLLVIILO 24 NOILONNI JNIL WOO0Y INIAT aLva

€007 YVHA — ATHIM FOVId SOA 5d




